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Revenue was HK$2,428.0 million (2015: HK$2,244.9
million), increased by 8.2%

Profit attributable to equity shareholders was
HK$200.8 million (2015: HK$144.0 million),
increased by 39.5%

Profit before the net gain on disposal of non-current
assets held for sale amounted to HK$189.1 million,
increased by 31.3%

Gross profit margin was 15.9% (2015: 14.9%),

increased by 1.0 percentage point

Return on average equity' was 29.6% (2015: 25.4%)

Basic earnings per share were HK158.62 cents
(2015: HK114.13 cents)

Final dividend of HK55.0 cents per share and special
final dividend of HK45.0 cents per share were
proposed to commemorate the 25th anniversary of

ABL) - EAN75% public listing. Total dividend per share for the year
increased by 75% to HK140.0 cents (2015: HK80.0
cents)

BiaE1 : FPHREESEREAAQAGELSRFEEM  Note 1: Return on average equity is defined as profit

wA MEBREERETENIERDEE RS attributable to equity shareholders of the
R RUFRFRESLENTHE Company before the net gain on disposal
of non-current assets held for sale against the
average total equity at the beginning and the
end of the year
KIREEEERAF
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Interim results announcement
- 26 November 2015

Paid date of
the interim dividend and special interim dividend
- 30 December 2015

Annual results announcement
- 29 June 2016

Closure of register of members
(1) Annual general meeting
- 6 September 2016 to
8 September 2016
(both days inclusive)

(2) Proposed final dividend and special final dividend
- 15 September 2016 to
20 September 2016
(both days inclusive)

Annual general meeting
- 8 September 2016

Payable date of
the final dividend and special final dividend
- On or before 3 October 2016
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

In the last financial year, we were able to achieve encouraging
results, with revenue rising by 8.2% to HK$2,428.0 million
compared with HK$2,244.9 million recorded for the
corresponding period of last year. Gross profit margin rose to
15.9% (2015: 14.9%). Meanwhile, the Group’s profit attributable
to equity shareholders totalled HK$200.8 million (2015:
HK$144.0 million), representing an increase of 39.5%. Profit
before the net gain on disposal of non-current assets held for
sale amounted to HK$189.1 million, up by 31.3%. Earnings per
share were HK158.62 cents compared to HK114.13 cents for the
corresponding period of last year.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK55.0 cents
(2015: HK52.0 cents) per share and a special final dividend of
HK45.0 cents (2015: Nil) per share for the year ended 31 March
2016. Together with the interim dividend of HK31.0 cents (2015:
HK28.0 cents) and a special interim dividend of HK9.0 cents (2015:
Nil) per share paid during the year, the total dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2016 amounts to HK140.0 cents (2015: HK80.0
cents) per share, representing a total distribution of approximately
88% of the Group’s profit for the year. The proposed final
and special final dividends will be paid on or before Monday,
3 October 2016 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company at the close of business on
Tuesday, 20 September 2016.
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Over the years, we have been operating our business with a
people-oriented focus, striving to do our best for both our
customers and staff. Comprehensive staff training and employee
engagement have successfully fostered a happy culture within
the organisation. As a result, our staff are able to proactively
take ownership in serving customers, listening to our customers’
needs, and ultimately creating a happy dining experience for
our customers. In seeking to not only be a preferred brand, but
also to be the most appreciated brand, we work hard to earn
our customers’ trust and support. To achieve this, we go beyond
offering quality food and focus on elevating every aspect of the
dining experience. Serving our customers “straight from the
heart” has rewarded us with steady and notable improvements in
the Group's performance during the year, including winning the
Gold Service Appreciation Award of the Hong Kong Association
for Customer Service Excellence.
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Hong Kong

Our fast food operations have sustained momentum in achieving
satisfactory same-store sales growth of approximately 5%.
During the year under review, we have aggressively expanded
our presence in the city. A total of 13 new outlets were opened.
We will continue to strengthen our network in Hong Kong, in an
effort to cater to more customers from different walks.

Aside from location convenience, our customers also look for
quality food and exceptional service at Fairwood. With that in
mind, we have continued to refine our signature dishes and
have added new products that create greater excitement and
satisfaction. At the same time, we have once again exceeded our
customers’ expectations by introducing table service in all of our
stores during dinner hours, motivated by our unyielding dedication
to better serving our patrons. This service is a significant milestone
for the fast food industry and we are proud to be the pioneer.

Driven by our desire to serve the wider community and to fulfil
our customers’ wants, we have continued to expand our specialty
restaurant division, with the launching of a casual Japanese-
Western restaurant in early December 2015. The restaurant is
currently well managed and is an exciting prospect for further
development. As the performance of our specialty restaurants has
been encouraging, we are keen to introduce more of them to our
customers in the near future.
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While meeting the expectations and desires of our customers is
important, we are equally aware of the needs of our staff. Hence,
we express our appreciation for their efforts and achievements
whenever and wherever possible, on top of offering employee
development opportunities that include staff training and career
path planning. Furthermore, open and proactive communication
is encouraged at all levels. This has contributed to low staff
turnover rates in both frontline and management staff. We fully
believe that nurturing a happy workforce results in a happy dining
experience for our customers.

Managing costs are always important for sustainable development.
We have continued to dedicate efforts in adopting various
strategies to improve our operational performance. A global
sourcing strategy; catering menus to better suit our customers’
needs; and flexible rosters are supported by the SAP Enterprise
Resources Planning system. Our reengineered central food
processing plant enables us to deliver higher food preparation
efficiency and quality. Aside from managing costs, we have paid
much effort to minimise food wastage, better handle labour
relation issues and streamline business operations.

With regards to the Mainland China market, we are pleased to
see signs of a sustainable turnaround. We have realised top-
line and bottom-line growths along with same-store sales
growth of approximately 5% in local currency. At the same time,
consolidation and alignment of operations with Hong Kong has
been completed. Since the Mainland China market is expected
to remain competitive, we will monitor the market closely and
take prudent steps to expand in Southern China, particularly in
Guangzhou and Shenzhen.

—
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Network

During the year under review, the Group has opened 15 new
stores, of which 14 were in Hong Kong and one was in Mainland
China. As of 31 March 2016, the Group had a total of 125 stores
in operation in Hong Kong, of which 119 were fast food stores
and six were specialty restaurants. In Mainland China, the Group
operates 10 stores.

A HAPPY CULTURE

The need to foster a culture of appreciation is always important.
We are constantly evaluating how best to engage our patrons
and contribute to the community. Ultimately, we hope to become
the most appreciated brand. Apart from encouraging expressing
appreciation within the team, we also encourage the expression
of mutual appreciation between our frontline staff and our
customers, to deliver more cheerfulness and warmth to a wider
audience.

To help our senior citizens and to express our appreciation and
gratitude for their contributions to society, we have continued
the “Silver Hair” campaign, “Fairwood $4 Meal Campaign”
and “Fairwood Gives Warmth Campaign”, along with other
promotions with them in mind.
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As always, we strive to do our utmost to provide quality service
that goes beyond our customers’ expectations. Our frontline staff
serve our customers with care and thoughtfulness, as reflected by
positive customer feedback and comments made to our customer
service representatives. The feedback is regularly shared with
our team members, motivating them further, boosting morale
and reinforcing the idea that the smallest details can make a big
difference in serving customers. With this comes greater work
satisfaction, as our staff feel that they not only have a direct hand
in helping create a happier society, they are in fact members
of such a society. We are proud that the efforts made by the
Group and the team as a whole have together garnered industry
recognition.

PROSPECTS

With the fast pace of life in Hong Kong, there is no denying that
fast food culture is deeply rooted in the city. In the foreseeable
future, that pace is unlikely to slow down, hence we believe that
there remains tremendous potential and opportunity ahead for
the industry and we will continue to aggressively develop our
operations in Hong Kong.

In respect of the economy in Mainland China, the recovery is
expected on a sluggish path. Thus, we will be looking forward to
achieving managed growth on the back of the turnaround realised
this year. To ensure the happening of such, we will continue to
improve all areas of operation and closely align it with Hong Kong.
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While the bottom line is considered the true definition of success
for many organisations, we sincerely believe that the ultimate
measure of success is our ability to serve our customers. This
entails offering the finest products and services. As we move
forward, we will therefore continue to listen to them, offer total
dining experiences and stay alert to developing trends. At the
same time, fostering a happy culture within the Group is of our
top priority so that we can share that positive energy with our
community as well, which is the most important catalyst for long-
term sustainable growth.

APPRECIATION

At this time, | would like to offer my appreciation to the
management team and all those who make up the Fairwood team
for their hard work and perseverance over the past year. | wish to
also thank our customers for their continuing patronage. A word
of gratitude must certainly be extended to all of our shareholders
and business partners as well for their longstanding commitment
and confidence in the Group.

s
EHE
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITERE

Executive Chairman

FE —E-RFRAZTAR
Hong Kong, 29 June 2016
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2016, total assets of the Group were HK$1,141.8
million (2015: HK$982.1 million). The Group's working capital
was HK$259.9 million (2015: HK$217.5 million), represented
by total current assets of HK$656.2 million (2015: HK$537.4
million) against total current liabilities of HK$396.3 million (2015:
HK$319.9 million). Current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against total current liabilities, was 1.7 (2015: 1.7).
Total equity was HK$676.3 million (2015: HK$600.2 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2016, the
Group had bank deposits and cash amounting to HK$548.6
million (2015: HK$419.0 million), representing an increase of
30.9%. Most bank deposits and cash were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars and Renminbi.

At 31 March 2016, the Group continued to maintain a healthy
financial position and had total bank loans of HK$6.6 million (2015:
HK$11.0 million) denominated in Hong Kong dollars. All of the
Group's bank borrowings were subject to the floating rate basis
and the maturity of borrowings are up to 2019. The unutilised
banking facilities were HK$215.6 million (2015: HK$258.7
million). The gearing ratio of the Group dropped to 1.0% (2015:
1.8%), which was calculated based on the total bank loans over
total equity.

PROFITABILITY

Return on average equity was 29.6% (2015: 25.4%), being profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company before the net
gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale against the
average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year.

15
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, capital expenditure was approximately HK$137.5
million (2015: HK$104.0 million), which was mainly for the
renovation works for new and existing shops. The increase was
due to more stores opened compared to last year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation
in exchange rate is immaterial to the Group's financial position.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
cash at bank and other financial assets that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. As United States
dollar is pegged to Hong Kong dollar, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong Kong
dollar exchange rate. The Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short term imbalances.

For the purpose of offsetting the exposure of the interest rate
fluctuation, the Group had entered a forward interest rate swap
with a financial institution. The swap was arranged to match
the maturity of the repayment schedule of a bank loan with the
maturity over the next half years and had the fixed swap rate of
2.74%.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP'S ASSETS

At 31 March 2016, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounted to HK$1.5 million (2015: HK$1.6 million) and no
bank deposits and cash was used to pledge any loans or banking
facilities.
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COMMITMENTS
The Group's capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2016
were HK$22.3 million (2015: HK$25.4 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2016, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking facilities
extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under the guarantee arrangement. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period under
the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn down by
all the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantees, being
HK$79.1 million (2015: HK$71.9 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and
there is no transaction price.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

At 31 March 2016, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 4,900 (2015: 4,500). Staff costs for the year
were approximately HK$736.3 million (2015: HK$658.2 million).
Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and other
relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration
packages, share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and the individual employees. Also,
the Group has committed to provide related training program to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

REPORTING PERIOD

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")

Report of Fairwood Holdings Limited (thereinafter referred to
s “Fairwood” or the “Group”) that covers the sustainability

performance of the Group from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016,

unless stated otherwise.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The report follows the ESG Reporting Guide, as set out in Appendix
27 to the Main Board Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The report content is focused largely on Fairwood's Hong Kong
operations, including the headquarter office, central food
processing plant (hereinafter referred to as “CFPP”), as well
as its restaurant outlets, unless stated otherwise. The Hong
Kong operations represent the majority of Fairwood’s social,
environmental and economic impacts. Its system for reliably
collecting and reporting related data does not currently include
operations in Mainland China, unless stated otherwise.

INFORMATION AND FEEDBACK

For details regarding its financial performance and corporate
governance, please refer to Fairwood's official website
http://www.fairwoodholdings.com.hk and its Annual Reports. The
Group values your feedback on this report and its sustainability
performance, please feel free to offer your comments and
guestions at esg@fairwood.com.hk.
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CEO FOREWORD

Our mission statement of “Enjoy Great Food. Live a Great Life!”
is the engine that drives our sustainable growth. We believe in a
sustainable enterprise that puts people first. That is why we place
emphasis on our management and staff, equipping them with
skills and encouraging a positive mindset to explore emerging
market trends, to enhance food quality and safety protocols, to
contribute environmental initiatives in lowering carbon footprint,
and to serve our customers with passion.

This is our second ESG Report, covering our sustainability
performance for the year ended 31 March 2016. We have chosen
a recipe theme, outlining key ESG materials along our entire
operational process, all of which play an integral part in our
Group'’s sustainable growth. Key highlights include:

Happy Food. Partnered with Hong Kong Productivity Council to
enhance our food safety management system, and conducted
audits in the CFPP and selected restaurants.

Happy Team. Conducted focus group meetings to further
reinforce “Happy Team” culture. As a result, an increase in “Happy
Index” — our internal key performance indicator of employee
satisfaction was achieved.

Happy Community. Continuity of various campaigns such as the
“Silver Hair” campaign through increasing number of restaurants
with priority seats and food delivery service; the “Fairwood $4
Meal Campaign” to allow the elderly to enjoy great food at a
favorable price; and “Fairwood Warm Caring Campaign” to
distribute food and warm clothing to the elderly within the
community.

Happy Environment. We commit to using energy-efficient
lighting for all new and to-be-renovated restaurant outlets.

| would like to thank our management team and staff for their
continued support and commitment to the growth of our business.
| believe that as we hold true to our purpose and mission, the best
years are still ahead in our drive towards sustainable development.

Chan Chee Shing
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 29 June 2016
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BT KHRE ABOUT FAIRWOOD

APREEABBHEHEIREEMEEEE Y As one of the leading fast food chains in Hong Kong, Fairwood
— —HBNWABRERHEEERMERS © s dedicated to offering the highest quality products and service
A REFHETEAEIRE - AEBZE®IEA  to our customers in a modern and comfortable environment. The
BEME RZT—X"F=A=1+—H H®  Group has been expanding its restaurant network progressively
EBAHEKLE125HDIE - B’RFIMWEME  and is operating 125 outlets in Hong Kong at 31 March 2016.
FEAPREREE R UERERNSFEEE - 9 Our business is comprised of Fairwood fast food restaurants and
FIEEBTAE - —%R - RKRMXE ASAP 4 brands of specialty restaurants, namely Kenting Tea House,
AR BRYESR - The Leaf Restaurant, Buddies Café and ASAP together with food
processing.

FREEFEMUKERREE (ZS—H/1="F—7HBER)
Our Sustainability Highlights in Hong Kong Only (Financial Year 2015/2016)

HK$2.28 4,262

BILLION HET SAAS/

(R=Z—<"E=A=+—8)

— : EMPLOYEES
:Iﬁgzz-S%E :  (AS OF 31 MARCH 2016) "

sapunew, @

REVENUE OF FOOD
AND BEVERAGES

\J'

......................................................................................................

oo | B EES SR
125 m 14 (E:E’E—Jriiiaﬁ—aé_g—,—@

: / /7 1 \ \
BEED : NEW RESTAURANT
(R=B—XE= )EJ +-8) . OUTLETS & m

RESTAURANT OUTLETS - (TAPRIL 2015 TO *

(AS OF 31 MARCH 2016) 31 MARCH 2016)

2 O WEEBBRAT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED




KREHAFERRBS

AMERE - B REBREE - KPEAR]
FEZRWOKERRMFEARMER [T
R WITTERANEE

BEREZMRE - ARENFNETT LT #
BERNEZERE -

BEAN - BN EE S/ MAE S A A
BN - MELEREAREE——RHA -

MBS ARRF G TIRER AR AR
ERAREZERRETRFER - RIEH
LR WERRRAREBIEENER - ]
PERAFERBKRERBENERFDIT T
tE - AMEEBM T BRERFEREMNEN -

ERMFMY

—IAE - AERPIEERSDERSER
AR EBTEEHR HEHSMREER
Mmoo PAT BRI BB AR R L E
b

AEMNEIFREEFRS - EHFRBMX
o BNENRYMRERLZERASEE R
RFAREBRNE S BRERBECS2E
FRIE

FAIRWOOD'S RECIPE FOR SUSTAINABILITY

This year’s ESG Report takes on a theme of a recipe — the various
sustainable components and procedures that deliver great food
and services to our customers.

Through materiality assessment, we engage our stakeholders to
derive important aspects that should be considered in our Group’s
sustainable growth.

Through our four task forces, we implement a variety of sustainable
practices which are explained in this report.

We have engaged an external consultant, Allied Environmental
Consultants Limited, as our advisor in environmental aspects
related to the Group’s operations. This year we have kick-started
data collection and analysis, in order to better position ourselves
for environmental KPI disclosures as required by the Stock
Exchange.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Consistently, we maintain close communication with our
stakeholders this year. Through multiple discussions, surveys and
direct communications, Fairwood further understands the issues
that matter most to our stakeholders.

This year's material aspects are similar to previous year, except the
ranking of these aspects. Stakeholders have ranked food quality
and safety to be the most material and Fairwood have put in
more resources into ensuring the health and happiness of our
customers.
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HAPPY FOOD
HAPPY TEAM
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ERMHE TASK FORCES

FAM [RISFEAL o EEHEF 1] #8971%  Adhering to our corporate mission of “Enjoy Great Food. Live

- RRVESETERSRMES - ¥E  a Great Lifel”, Fairwood aims to continuously enhance the
[AARAR] 89Xt - WEBEEMENE - &£ food quality, cultivate its people-oriented culture, and operate
BITBAERANERERNEET - WEZK  responsibly. Led by our chief executive officer and management
BMEBEK - EBMEFOERITEREE  team, four task forces are in place to engage our stakeholders and

B BRI B ORERE - to maintain focus on our priorities.
S @?‘ " iommsaia 00
T &_EE_ People Development
Chief Executive Officer Task Force
and Management Team - m Em Em Em oEm o Em Em
.. R BT TR EmMESMAF @ B
—fE [RGB
Increase staff morale, increase
manpower effectiveness, build up a

f ‘ ’ “Happy Team”
AMEZEEIME (Y )
Food Safety Task Force

REERNRRLEEEER

Maintain effective food safety
management system

o

XIeBRREES /M
Culture Development
Task Force ‘
1;;5% FE?%E?\/D . /Ef%#%j;’v I E’Jffi% L TERERZEZEE/E
B 115 S o Paa A o 4=
e RAWEMARAD O TR Workplace Safety Task Force
Promote company’s culture “Enjoy e Y -
Great Food. Live a Great Life!” to all ﬂﬂ?ﬁ@%f%lfﬁ%iﬁﬁ’\]igﬁ , %%—'éj—
employees and create a happy and Fﬁﬁél%’ﬂ%&%i%&ﬁiﬁﬁizgﬁ‘& B
energetic work environment -
Yy Actively promote the importance
‘ . of workplace safety, and enhance

employees’ awareness of occupational
safety and health

00 =
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BMEEATHRENBW I AN EZRE  We present the key ingredients and procedures in the recipe in

MZEEPE o BEZREBBEHEMA =15 the following pages. The procedure follows the entire flow of

o RE ﬁﬁ%?ﬂ%ﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁ% EEEM - F operation in our business, from management policy guidance,

SEMEIEBEE AR ERLH - ——23AK  to procurement, to food preparation and cooking, to customer

SE AR EETNRRAZH care and community engagement. We highlight our sustainable
practices and environmental footprint.

secret Recipe

.;gagmj‘i Fairwood’s

| T EfigEl  Key Ingredients

L A RN
FEZTH BEED
Over 4 Years of History Over 1 ZO Restaurant Outlets
N} !’ '{
" 2
4 2 6 frbRES T A=A/ M
I} Happy Employees Task Forces
qr oR
FSETaR:: EER IR K
Happy Community BIER

Reputable Local and
International Suppliers
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How We Do It
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Refers to the four material |
aspects that the Group strives to
continuously enhance
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Safety Monitoring
ERRE

Indoor Environment
BEIRBER

Energy Usage
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Water Usage Guidance
REYE IR

Waste Management
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Care for the Elderly
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Community Engagement
e Ay ]
Stakeholder Engagement
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ABIDE BY BUSINESS ETHICS

Fairwood’s Legal and Company Secretarial Department oversees
compliance with laws and Group policies. Policies and guidelines
are established to describe the requirements and procedures
for a variety of topics, ranging from consumer data protection
and privacy policies to conflict of interest. Additional documents
include a detailed set of policies and procedures against corruptive
practices that guide and encourage positive employee conduct,
including

e Guidance on compliance with anti-corruption laws

e Guidance on appropriate gifts and business entertainment

e Prohibition of commercial bribery

e Guidance on dealing with customers, contractors, suppliers,
and other personnel of company that has commercial dealings
with Fairwood appropriately

e Prohibition of any forgery or deceptive accounting methods
and records

During the reporting period, no legal proceedings or cases
regarding corrupt practices has been instituted by or brought
against Fairwood or its employees.

At least once a year, an internal memorandum will be issued
by Internal Audit Department (“IA"”) to all employees inviting
them to submit any comment or concerns about suspected
misconduct, malpractice or impropriety on a confidential basis
via a designated email address, a telephone number or facsimile
number. Furthermore, IA will review any reports of irregularity
that are generated from internal control system. Once a report/
comment is received by IA, it will be investigated. After which, I1A
will report its summary of findings to the Audit Committee and
appropriate measures would be taken.
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SUPPORT SUSTAINABLE EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES
Fairwood aims to build a “Happy Team” that strives for self-
improvement and advancement, so employees can serve with
the same enthusiasm to deliver an enjoyable dining experience
to customers. The collective effort put forward by the Group and
its dedicated staff contribute to achieving the Group’s corporate
mission of “Enjoy Great Food. Live a Great Life!”

“Happy Team” culture is supported by its sustainable employment
practices. Its employment policy and practices strictly comply
with the Employment Ordinance of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Human Resources Department performs
relative checking and monitoring procedures to ensure the
prevention of child or forced labor.

The Group is dedicated to fair and equal treatment in all areas
of human resources, including recruitment and promotion,
compensation and dismissal, working hours, diversity and other
benefits and welfare. In terms of recruitment, Fairwood values
diversity in its workforce, hence the Group recruits people solely
based on their ability and attitude, regardless of their gender, race
or physical and mental ability.

Under the lead of the Chief Executive Officer, the People
Development Task Force reviewed and improved the 5R’s
(recruitment, retention, recognition, recreation and reward)
policies and strategies. The task force has been able to renew
all recruitment materials and develop new recruitment strategy
for ethnic minorities, youth and mid-aged staff, through 13 focus
groups with a total attendance of 97 staff at different employment
levels. All of which have reinforced the “Happy Team” spirit.

[REEEE] 2BEBHEEEEER  UHBBETE— S TRHEREEE -

A visit tour to Hong Kong College of Technology to encourage employees to further explore and understand food and beverage hospitality industry.
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Fairwood actively partners with the Labour Department, the
Employees Retraining Board, Salvation Army and other community
groups to offer employment and development opportunities to
trained young people and persons with disabilities. These are
achieved through various events such as local career day and
employment seminars. The Group strives to build an inclusive and
harmonious working environment by arranging suitable work
and providing appropriate training to employees with disabilities,
based on their capability and need. Through the job fair for the
middle-aged and elderly, the Group also offers employment
opportunities to the middle-aged and the elderly and strives to
promote family-friendly employment practices in the workplace.

Fairwood offers a competitive remuneration package, as well
as extra benefits to all employees. These include but not limited
to paid marriage leave, travel allowance, medical scheme and
education fund. “Fairwood Education Fund” provides education
subsidies to eligible employees’ children who are currently
enrolled in primary and secondary schools in Hong Kong. On the
other hand, the “Fairwood Caring Fund” targets employees with
financial difficulties, and provides surgical costs and consolation
payment to employees and their families.
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PROTECT NATURAL RESOURCES AND THE ENVIRONMENT
The Group strictly complies with all appropriate laws and
regulations of Environmental Protection Department.

Fairwood adopts a conservation approach to ensure
environmental sustainability. The Group has instilled a "“use less
waste less” culture, as advocated by the Environmental Protection
Department, as well as multiple waste reduction measures
throughout its operational flow. The Group strives to operate in
an efficient manner to minimise the environmental impact it has
to neighboring communities.

Fairwood is committed to reducing waste generation within its
operations. Used paper constitutes the majority of waste at the
headquarter, which comprised of office paper and poster. It is
generally collected by recyclers, who will process and directly
recycle at paper mills. The Group also encourages its employees
at the headquarter to reduce the amount of printing, as well
as promote double-sided printing. It also recycles all used toner
cartridges, by returning them to respective suppliers for reuse.
Environmental impacts at the CFPP and restaurant outlets will be
discussed in the following steps.



B&ERL
FOSTERING A HAPPY CULTURE
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Last December, Fairwood had its 43rd anniversary ceremony to celebrate the long history of service to customers in Hong Kong. It also included
a long service awards ceremony, which aims to commend the dedication of the seasoned employees.

BiRX#

Resource

Support Awareness

Programs
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Using “Enjoy Great Food. Live a Great Life!” as our theme and
mission, our goal is to become an enterprise that is known for
putting our customers first. To reach that goal, we understand
that we need to invest in our staff in order to cultivate a happy
team culture. Through various internal development initiatives,
we have trained our staff to become “community ambassadors”,
to engage and care for our community.

STRENGTHEN TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to providing comprehensive on-the-
job training programs, which collectively serve as a platform
for its staff to enhance their skill set and to further realise their
potential. Our goal for our development programs is to encourage
our staff to “never cease to learn, develop potential and self-
improvement”. The Group provides a clear career path and a
transparent promotion system for its employees.

Through training in multiple aspects of the business operations,
employees are able to strengthen their operational knowledge,
management efficiency, as well as leadership skills. To this end,
the Group designed different types of training courses, including
“360° Management”, “Shop Management”, “Technical Skills
Certification Courses” and “Diploma in Business Management”.

Specialty trainings are also held at CFPP. These trainings revolve
around occupational health and safety, including food safety and
hygiene, machinery use and ISO international standards.

Fairwood also introduced a new “buddy system” at its CFPP in
2015. The system allows a seasoned employee to guide a new
member through his/ her first three months of work. This system
aims at welcoming new members so they feel more at ease at
the work place. New members have been able to learn the ropes
efficiently, and turnover rate of new employees has significantly
improved since the implementation of the “buddy system”.
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PROMOTE WORK-LIFE BALANCE

The Group strives to cultivate the “Happy Team” culture among
its employees. Management team promotes work-life balance
among its employees, by introducing flexible working hours
and through a series of celebratory events. These events bring
employees together and foster interpersonal relationships,
while strengthen a good sense of corporate attachment. They
give people the opportunity to interact with others and foster
collaboration. It also creates a support system among co-workers
where they are encouraged to do their best and learn from each
other.
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EHERED BERERS  ERMMFHES

Fairwood organised multiple festive celebrations, including birthdays, Christmas and New Year's celebrations

[REER] FELLE

Fairwood also offered its employees and friends a one-day subsidised trip “Happy Voice” singing contest

to Hong Kong Disneyland Resort

EEN =

“Mahjong Championship” Contest




34

RiE HERELG®RSE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

& RERE

RREFETT TRARAK] S EEER
BETHEBAR - HABOKRIEMELE
T BUBRESAT  EBRETZHE
B ARBIEFROIE N TERE -

BEEruREsE/ ) ENER - KRERE
THETMEREBEBKS - AEETFFH
BEEE T —#2H [Big Bangl Kg -
METHBERAEBEBNELERTR - K
PREHER [REROTE] MR EE
HEMNETIHDZRAREMESTHRA LU -

H—HE - ARETEFERETEREF
FIRER [REEE] AERELER
WEHE R G RIEDHT Rigst » NEDIEA
BRANBERETH [RERE] EFE -

IMPROVE COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

Believing in putting people first, the management of Fairwood
encourages candid communication. We listen to and care for
our staff in a bid to attract high-calibre talent while cultivating
a strong sense of belonging among existing staff members and
create a happy and energetic working environment.

With the help of the Culture Development Task Force, Fairwood
has strengthened its two-way communication channels with its
employees. Twice a year, all employees are invited to its “Big
Bang” meeting which summarises the Group’s operations and sets
its sight for future development. Fairwood also created video clips
to share company news and to promote “Happy Team” culture.

On the other hand, all staff are also invited to fill in the “Happy
Index” survey twice a year to raise their opinion for analysis and
review. The “Happy Index” for both branches’ front-line and
kitchen staff has increased this year.

RPE R —ZFE REZE] UKETRSERFRNIHERENER - THREFERIEHEREZRE
Fairwood also organised a series of “Tea breaks” to gather opinion from its branches and CFPP staff, which allows the Group to
understand their needs and to make appropriate improvements.

RREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SAFEGUARD EMPLOYEES’ HEALTH AND SAFETY
Employees’ health and safety is essential to Fairwood. The Group
has set a "ZERO" injury goal and multiple preventative measures
are in place to guarantee employees’ health and safety. These
preventative measures focus on four main areas, including
training, rewards, resource support and awareness programs.

rgj IERE

"ZERO™ i

il

Main Areas

Aim

s3I
Training
RIMBETTHERE2EH - B>
ITEEEERBEEREENL

To strengthen employees’ work
safety awareness and to reduce
number and severity of injuries
and accidents

Rewards

BiEXE
Resource
Support

ABEEERER [T] I AREGRELEEART

BEBHNEINSE
To commend employees
and outlets for their
effective practice of
“ZERO" injury measures

E e
To promote healthy lifestyle
and workplace safety

Bl E M

Awareness
Programs
RefEoEETHBE
e RREEZEH
To improve the awareness

of all staff in occupational
safety and health

Measures

o [HERIERZZFM]

"Hygiene and occupational
safety manual”

o BMERIBERERNET
BRI
Focus trainings on common
categories of work injuries

s REETBZEIRDE
HEITEELE
Focus trainings on
employees and branches
with injury occurrences

o BEFUBLIRRRAS
IREREHITHRIR
Invite Labour Department
to provide work safety
trainings for branch
management quarterly

o SELTHERHEEESH
BEZDREFEREWR B
IR
Arrange for district
management to participate
in the annual occupational
safety trainings, organised
by the Occupational Safety
and Health Council every
year

o [FRZR] EE
g2l-xB T T
v
An award scheme
that aims to reward
outlets with no injury
within the reporting
year

s BAETMIZI IB
HTHS
Announce “Zero”
injury leaderboard
monthly

o ZMBTEREY [HR
EL AR
Participate in the
annual Catering

Industry Safety Award

Scheme organised
by the Labour
Department

o HERBEEEA
5 REBETRMH
PESERES Lol
®EE
Partners with
UCMG to provide
medical checkup of
preventable diseases
to all full time staff

o RESBEENEAR
ERE

Provide highly
effective personal
protective equipment

e BARBIXRERS
KR - IRIERERER
Offer seasonal fruits
to staff every month
for healthy diet

e ZBIDr. Kongf# s
RERbEE
Subsidise Dr. Kong
healthy shoes and
special slip-resistant
shoes

5 A HRPVE TIER
VB - (EERIRR
Issue monthly happy
work tips posters

to highlight safety
reminders

e BART [I%ZE
NEE] EF
Organise monthly
“Industry Safety
Team” meeting

. [AIETEEINA
Wl MEFAEDE
N IEEIMERRTE
biPapz
Issue monthly
“QOutlets
Occupational Injury
Records” that include
cases of injury
and preventative
measures
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At REHIVEFRENEREE - FECHE -« SERH -
10 FERHEEZ

GLOBALLY SOURCED FROM 39 COUNTRIES
INCLUDING BRAZIL, MAINLAND CHINA, USA,
THAILAND AND VIETNAM ETC.

ADHERE TO PROCUREMENT PRINCIPLES

The Group puts in multiple layers of precautionary measures to
guarantee the safety and quality of food served throughout the
supply chain. These include monitoring from raw material, to
production process at the CFPP, transportation and production
process at restaurant outlets and delivery of food and services to
customers. Each process has its respective critical control points
("CCP"), which are carefully monitored by multiple departments.

To deliver excellent quality and safe food, quality assurance begins
at the start of Fairwood’s supply chain. Fairwood has a strict
supplier selection process. The Group sources from reputable local
suppliers that are registered and operated under the Hong Kong
Government's requirements. The Group requires the same level of
accreditation from all its oversea suppliers, and the priority is given
to those with international accredited food safety management
system standards, such as Hazard Analysis and Critical Control
Points (“HACCP") and ISO 22000.
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considers the following elements:

BN R AR %
International Accredited
Standards

In addition to value, quality and sales service, procurement also

IRIBIRERTE
Environmental Initiatives

BEE
Packaging Methods

KEIE
Delivery Methods

HEEEN
Supplier Profile

g EIRE AR
Social and Environmental
Compliance

| HEERES
Consolidation of Supply

&£ B % Procurement Considerations
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ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

As an enterprise specialised in operating fast food restaurants,
food waste reduction is one of our concerns. Procurement
practices have incorporated the “use less waste less” culture
and implemented appropriate measures. Our supply chain
management, purchasing decisions and quality control protocols
continue to ensure that wastage from spoilage and discarded
raw food materials are reduced at source. For example, when
making purchasing decisions, the Group Purchasing Department
calculates the estimated food consumption rate, in order to
prevent wastage or expiry of raw materials.
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ENGAGE WITH SUPPLIERS

The Group is aware of the environmental initiatives its suppliers
have. As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group will consider
incorporating environmental impact into purchasing decisions.

Fairwood closely engages with its suppliers. In addition to
maintaining open communications, Fairwood also visits and audits
its suppliers’ production plants from time to time, especially for
high-risk raw materials such as frozen poultry and bread. We wish
to implement the “Farm to Table” concept through raw material
monitoring.

Furthermore, all raw materials used in Fairwood have to undergo
a pre-qualification trial, receive relevant health and hygiene
certificates, as well as laboratory report, before they are put to
use.

HAER IR T Supplier's fish fillet plant

AREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RARMZEEERSR
ENHANCED FOOD SAFETY
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
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— || PRIONTIHEBIMBERZEEE
o /|| CFPP PASSED AN EXTERNAL
FOOD SAFETY AUDIT
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FERRHEE ENSURE FOOD QUALITY
RNIREERFFUBIEHREERNATZER  Fairwood is committed to strictly adopting multiple measures as
M BREFEESENRL—BMEEE N follow, to ensure food sent to restaurant outlets is of excellent
ZE o quality and safe for consumption.
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Based on the actual production process, Quality

Set Assurance (“QA") Department analyses and sets
corresponding CCP

5

° °®
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== Production Department and QA Department

: regularly monitor whether the production process
Monltor is in strict compliance with the CCP, formulation
and specifications

.
.
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® WERAETIER - RRINTEOAEE °
E ’I‘E'I mITRIBZ [ERE AN R EDA :
From the receipt and production to shipping,
. h ipt and producti hipping, ¢
Standard|se all products in the CFPP are carefully monitored ¢
through multiple temperature and time setting :’
: 5B IR BB P T BR A R R I TR MO A
: o EE B AFERPAA A E RIS
E . QA Department also regularly audits CFPP's
° ¢ Audlt hygiene condition, to ensure all production areas
° * are sanitary
® FEMMM@E TR RETERMTE L
® . &E % BHARMRTEEENREE :
= .
an Both Production Department and QA Department
oo Improve regularly organise cross-functional meetings to
aa & discuss relevant food safety issues .

.
®
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CFPP is equipped with a state-of-the-art equipment to safeqguard
food safety. For example, a liquid nitrogen blast freezer and
air cooling units are in use to rapidly freeze products to a safe
temperature. This allows all food products to maintain its flavor
and nutrients and inhibit bacterial growth.

CFPP also has its own micro-organism laboratory to regularly
analyse and test raw materials, food ingredients and final products
at restaurant outlets. QA Department and associated departments
would immediately rectify any issues once found. During the
reporting year, the number of raw material tests performed has
increased to ensure food safety monitoring begins at source.

In the past year, the Food Safety Task Force cooperated with Hong
Kong Productivity Council to establish risk levels on each type of
raw materials and further enhanced its food safety management
system in CFPP.

Operate Responsibly

All items are carefully processed in accordance with the Group's
own stringent standards. The conservation culture is infused into
everyday's routine at CFPP. For example, a “just-in-time” (JIT)
inventory control system is optimised at CFPP, whereas we only
procure materials as demand requires. This practice increases
efficiency and decreases food waste at CFPP.

In addition, the Group promotes material and energy conservation
concepts, and introduces practical measures to its employees on
a consistent basis. CFPP is also equipped with an environmental
protection information database that teaches and reminds

employees the best industry practices in conserving resources
usage.
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Employees at CFPP have implemented energy saving measures.
For example, when certain cooking stoves are not in use, the
supporting system and equipments such as the ventilation hood
and lighting system would be turned off.

Non-hazardous waste disposed at CFPP is categorised into three
major areas, including oil and grease, paper and scrap metal, all
of which are recycled and/or repurposed accordingly.

e Oil and grease produced from food processing and cooking
are collected by local waste oil contractors. Collected used oil
and grease are repurposed for biodiesel production.

e Used paper mainly consists of cardboard. Used papers are
generally collected by recyclers, who will process and directly
recycle at paper mills.

e Most scrap metals are used or broken processing machinery
beyond repair. Such machines are collected and recycled by
recyclers.

Water serves as a key element in our food offerings and in our
operations. Much of the water at CFPP is used to prepare and
cook food, to clean and to run equipment such as dishwashers.
Recognising both environmental and economic impacts of our
water footprint, we will continue to innovate and incorporate
water conservation strategies into our operations.

On the other hand, CFPP uses specified cleaning agents for
cleaning purposes. The Group maintains an approved list of
cleaning agents for each area. Staff members receive proper
trainings in using, storing and discarding cleaning agents. Used
cleaning agents are discharged into drains after proper filtration.
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ENRARR MONITOR FOOD SAFETY

EBEDERERFRAREEAIZ®E - X FEBHEK  Restaurant outlets are expected to uphold the Group’s standard
ZEWERm c EEBRYERAMAKEIEETT  of serving high quality and safe products. Monitoring at the
OBl BRERMEMRER - EEMRE - B4R restaurant outlets is performed in four areas, including raw
BAMRAEERMER - material checks, quality checks, sanitation and 5-S system.

FRME—ETRE - WEREMEFENR
BRRE - NAME - AEBSEEEN
EHEEE =eaume
Raw Materials Raw materials are checked to ensure that they
all meet relevant company standards. The Group
Check would make corresponding improvements  or
abstain from using the material, if there is any issue
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Qualit Quality assessments are required for all products,
y based on respective inspection and monitoring

‘ Inspection procedures, including product display, temperature
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: and portions, among others
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\ : : Restaurant outlets are responsible for the sanitation
San |tat|0n of all outlet areas, including store front and kitchen
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5-S  system (structurise, systemise, sanitise,

« Systemisation standardise and self-discipline) is implemented to

assure bar areas and storage area are organised
and clearly labelled

\

o>
U1
wn

°
©00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0

BT A LHENI RGN - SFE R
EEEENREREIE  E—FINBRME

2EERR -

In addition to the four areas of monitoring aforementioned,
Fairwood has engaged in cooperation with Hong Kong Productivity
Council to further enhance food safety management system.

44 AREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



Ho—RBEHhERSAAEERS AR H S
e IRAEBEF AP SR TR T
HEHEIRERI R - MR FIRE EEEER
B UAREBRNMENZIER - SREHEA
iRy EEEAERENER

EEEDEAR  FBERMEWAEREIE -
MmIFRMIA R RARENDEE -

WORREE R

RBEHA - AEETE (ZRITRE K
51 REFARZERERMER - SEKEIE
MERBHNER - IBEEEDEEARE
RAEBBIARE -

ABRSE IR — RFEEHE - 457 2
SRHE R R E SR - SR M

s AWEMEEEDEMRAE—ETH
YRR R BE IR R AN Z2 RS R HI R
BREFERMES EKESERZERE
Mees - EREFER B HemEE
BAREBREE - RS ERSERRE
BERR -

s REZKIREZFNRIESE
Mo A KA (8 2 B 4 AE A o

FAM

N AERBETRERE B TRHEH MR
SEEAS - AR EAFEN TIFRE -

A precautionary measure is that all products are labelled by date.
If any issues arise during the production process, testing, or at any
CCP, the production date can be tracked and all other products of
the same batch would be recalled and retrieved immediately. This
measure prevents the outflow of questioned goods in outlets.

At the restaurant outlets, all food products are efficiently handled
while non-food items are utilised in an optimal manner.

REDUCE AIR POLLUTION

During the reporting year, the Group had complied with all relevant
requirements on cooking fumes under the Air Pollution Control
Ordinance. The Group did not receive any notice or summons of
violations or non-compliance. All restaurant outlets had passed all
inspections with satisfactory results.

Fairwood utilises a series of practical control measures to minimise
cooking oily fume and odor emissions. These control measures
include:

e All Fairwood restaurant outlets are equipped with a
comprehensive exhaust system and air pollution control
equipment, including electrostatic precipitators, hydro-vents
and air washers, to ensure there is sufficient ventilation in
the kitchen, to reduce the accumulation of oily fume and to
reduce cooling load in restaurant outlets.

¢ lowered the ceiling at the bar area so that the exhaust system
can effectively extract cooking fumes by zones.

On the other hand, the Group also provides spot-cooling and fresh
air ventilation for kitchen staff, to provide a more comfortable
working environment.
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B ¥ RE iR CONSERVE ENERGY

ANREERBEEBEETANERE ZMETFEIIRE  While providing good indoor air quality and comfortable

MEEMRF BB AERERPEAESE  environment to the customers, Fairwood also strives to reduce

RUREL energy use and greenhouse gas emissions to combat climate
change.

RGN - RRERHERIETA82REIE  During the reporting year, Fairwood had continued to adopt the
LU following measures to reduce energy consumption:
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Air curtains are used wherever practicable at the entrances
of street level restaurants. This practice reduces infiltration of
hot outdoor air, which reduces the cooling load and maintains
customer comfort.

Timers are set to shut off outdoor lighting at night after
operating hours of Fairwood restaurant outlets, to conserve
energy and to minimise outdoor light pollution.

Customer dining areas of all Fairwood restaurant outlets
are illuminated by compact fluorescent lamps (CFL) and
energy-efficient LED to replace traditional fluorescent tubes
and halogen lamps respectively. By using energy-efficient
lighting, apart from direct saving in electricity consumed,
there is also indirect saving in energy consumption in air-
conditioning contributed by the reduced heat due to change
from traditional lighting fixtures.
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CONSERVE WATER

Fairwood cares about water habits within its operations. Water
serves as a key element in our operations. Water in our restaurant
outlets is used to cook food, to clean and to run equipment such
as dishwashers and ice machines.

On the other hand, in order to enhance awareness of hygiene
and work safety, the Group has incorporated a “Health and Work
Safety” manual. This manual provides each restaurant outlet a
unified set of operational guidelines for the use of cleaning
agents. The manual also consists of an approved list of cleaning
agents. Any additional cleaning agents will go through rigorous
procedures, including change of manual and provision of trainings,
before they are put into use.

MANAGE WASTE GENERATION

There are two main types of non-hazardous waste generated at
restaurant outlets, including used cooking oil and grease, as well
as packaging material:

e Similar to the CFPP, used cooking oil and grease generated
from the cooking process at restaurant outlets are collected by
local waste oil recyclers, and are then repurposed as biodiesel
generation.

e The three main categories of packaging material at Fairwood
are plastic bags, polypropylene packaging and disposable
cutlery. Fairwood continues its search for more environmentally
friendly options for packaging material. Currently, all plastic
bags for takeaway items use biodegradable plastic technology,
which is more environmentally friendly.
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o 7 WA % Bk 8
ENGAGE WITH OUR CUSTOMERS
AND COMMUNITY

Our business culminates in step 6 — our interaction with our
customers and community. In recent years, we have placed
emphasis on the value enhancement of not only our food quality,
but also on our service, and the dining environment of our
customers. We highlight several initiatives below that demonstrate
our commitment to quality service and care for our customers and
community.

CARE FOR OUR CUSTOMERS

Food Delivery Service

Our night time food delivery service brings our staff in close contact
with our customers. We started off by using place card stands to
which customers can place on their dining tables and wait for our
staff to bring the food to their tables. We had implemented this
service in the past year in order to introduce this new concept
of customer engagement, so both our staff and our customers
had time to get acquainted to this new arrangement. Through
this new service, we aim to create an engaging atmosphere
for communication and interaction between our staff and our
customers, further enhancing the dining experience.

More recently, we have replaced the standing place cards with
electronic customer locator devices. We believe that both our staff
and our customers have developed a mindset over the course of
the trial period with standing place cards, and so the upgrade of
hardware is simply a demonstration of incorporating technology
with our customer engagement approach. Food delivery service
has been extended to over 90% restaurant outlets, allowing more
customers to comfortably enjoy their dining experience.
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We believe this food delivery service is a breakthrough in fast-food
industry and are fully on board and progressing in a steady and
sustainable way.

Caring Facilities

When customers enter Fairwood’s restaurant outlets, the first
experience they encounter is the indoor environment. Therefore,
Fairwood puts particular emphasis on the quality of indoor
environment, to ensure that our customers are able to enjoy their
food in a comfortable atmosphere. The Group makes appropriate
adjustment initiative for indoor air quality management, based on
different conditions of the restaurant outlets. For example, the
Group has installed swirl air diffusers at customer dining areas of
appropriate restaurant outlets. This allows even air circulation in
all directions, so that customers can enjoy their cuisine in a more
comfortable environment.

No Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG”) Added Series and
Veggie Series

In order to promote healthier eating habits, we rolled out 13 healthy
dishes that do not use any MSG, including Sweet and Sour Pork
and Stewed Pork Ball with Egg Yolk. We also rolled out 5 healthy
and tasty selection of vegetarian dishes, which allow our customers
to choose from healthier dining options.

Personalised Service

All restaurant outlets have rolled out personalised service, with
multiple personalisation options for selected dishes, which allows
customers to choose based on their personal preference. This
includes less rice, less sugar in drinks or no oil for vegetables.
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Case Study: Service From The Heart

B KIRE | To: Fairwood
F: % AR | From: Customer A
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One evening in late June, | had dinner at one Fairwood restaurant outlet,
and saw a table with a father and his two children, aged 6-7 and 3-4. The
father walked away for a moment, and all of a sudden, the cleaning staff was
comforting the elder girl. The staff asked the girl to slowly drink some water
and not be worried, while she stayed and looked after the girl. It turned out
that the girl was choking and was scared because her father was not around.
| was sitting next to their table but | didn‘t realise until the cleaning staff saw
and immediately took care of the girl. | admired her for being attentive and
considerate, hence | would like to take the opportunity to commend her.
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Case Study: An Extraordinary Encounter
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B KIRJE | To: Fairwood
F: & A Z | From: Customer B

AARDABERRERE - TETF  AAZEEWD/E @ BT —
0 SORARIER B EV 2R - TEREBIRE B Al LAIARE SRR - L E 2D
XoRKER OREET  BESHOE RUKESHEBEER
REE - RAEPIOHIAE - BRIRKE - WRE MBERABH
BHRER  mEEE - DBERENEERENE - SBLE (K
RENSEE  MEAMMEMR U TBmAMNERE - LRE
M—RKREENTESUUERMR TBHE - E AN ENRE
RN RARESIEEREMENEELNARLRERSRE
FARFS - MERNRERE—ELET ML MER - H2IRMIsEHESE
RHUEFRKEINRY  YHEERORBEEETR - E@EFHE BF
EIF—RER  BEERTES |

| seldom dine at Fairwood, but in the New Year's Day afternoon, | went to a
Fairwood restaurant at Fu Cheong Estate, ordered a corn and pork with rice
and hot milk tea. | had never thought that fast-food could be so delicious,
especially the milk tea, which had a rich and fragrant smell, served at
moderate temperature, quality of which was comparable to exquisite western
restaurant. The quality of food drew my attention to this restaurant. | sat near
the entrance and noticed that the waiter, the cashier and the cleaning staff
were all so nice and polite, with smiles on their faces. | thought to myself: this
store’s management is not bad. A male supervisor of Fairwood sat next to
me and was discussing the dish-washing matter with his staff very patiently.
| was surprised that a supervisor of a fast-food restaurant would speak to his
staff with such gentleness and politeness. During the 15 minutes of dining,
| deeply felt the benefits of effective management and the commitment
to improve service quality. | believe that Fairwood must have spent a lot of
effort in management. | hope you can continue to provide cost-effective and
delicious food, and serve Hong Kong citizens well. It is truly not easy to have
such extraordinary experience!

O T ————
\\\\\\\\w\\\\\\\\\\m\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\m\\\\\\\

Fm———m m————— -
\ EIE REPLY | ' #%F FORWARD |
o o L—_—_—J

Q7
\

AT
.
\
O
fa

"/\‘,
e
KO
OA‘Q'

I I I T TR R,

51



52

RiE HERELG®RSE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HERE
T -EERERE HEEEE - KR
AEEBHRERR ML BURER
ERE HE-RIESEFTEORS - R
MeRER  ARIGRE THIEERE WA
HRLE o

[REEERE] &

REBER D EBFESm I A EREKABNR
mEERE |IEEER - BRREREEERNK
BERZWATRDINEBENERE - i8S
B2 BIRERAERE N BURES
AR ZAE$00REHERE  REBHE
AIARES [EEREIRAEENRR » SR
HREESS - EE-T—AFFEK KR
BB XA 15,6005RMREME K& I -

EERERE

o 35MDEIEHARMKEREFRLE
HREE R - KAREE  HTREE
FLAE

s MEEZRERELHL HERER
PRI 22 AL

s REAZEHBERDIRARBE  BREL
A

o o IEIRES - HRERERE

s ERDEZAFHERBEEELRF NG
W - HEEREER - LB -

o ERDEZ [HEEZERE] ZIME
B ER AR ENR A FEE
TRERERE -

RREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

CARE FOR THE ELDERLY

Fairwood continues to care for and serve the elderly in Hong Kong,
since the launch of “Silver Hair” campaign in 2014. In order to build
a sustainable relationship with the elderly customers, Fairwood
promotes a series of appropriate services, facilities and products to
better cater to their needs. The Group also provides trainings to
strengthen employees’ knowledge in caring for the elderly.

"Care for Seniors” Card

The Group invites all elders, aged 65 or above, to be a “Care for
Seniors” card holder, to alleviate the anxiety of dining out after
retirement and to connect with our community. Each “Care for
Seniors” card has a stored monthly discount value of HK$300.
Presenting the card would allow HK$3 to be deducted against
the bill for each purchase by the seniors. Up till the end of 2015,
Fairwood has distributed more than 15,600 “Care for Seniors”
cards.

Caring Facilities for the Elderly

¢ Modification of a number of fixed seats to movable seats near
the entrance of 35 restaurant outlets, named “priority seats”
is made. This aimed at providing easy seating for the elderly.

e Stick hooks are set up next to the priority seats to avoid
misplacements.

e The air speed and temperature are adjusted near the priority
seats to provide a comfortable dining environment for the
elders.

e Some stores are brightened to allow for easy reading.

¢ All washrooms in restaurant stores are equipped with stick
hooks and handrails to assist seating and standing for the
elderly and to prevent accidents.

¢ The food menu for the “No MSG Added” series is displayed
using non-glaring material and enlarged fonts, to ensure
clear reading of the food choices.
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Care for the Community

Through various charity activities, the Group wishes to utilise its
wide network of restaurant outlets to reach and assist multiple
underprivileged groups distributed in Hong Kong, as well as to raise
awareness to the long term challenges they face.

Fairwood $4 Meal Campaign

Every year, the Group hosts a “Fairwood $4 Meal Campaign” that
sells a classic lunch box at HK$4, the same price as around the
1970s. It hopes to evoke a sense of nostalgia, and allows elderly
to enjoy a delicious cuisine at a favourable price. This year, 1,200
people benefited from the “Fairwood $4 Meal Campaign”.

Fairwood Warm Caring Campaign
“Fairwood Warm Caring Campaign” distributes glutinous rice
with chicken, together with woolen socks to the elderly in need
within the community. This year, 1,600 people benefited from the
"Fairwood Warm Caring Campaign”.
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Donations

Fairwood has supported various charity organisations in the past
years, by placing donation boxes in our restaurant outlets to help
collect monetary donations from our customers.

EEEE EFEAL
Charity Organisations Target Receivers

SNEFRENG
Heifer International - Hong Kong

Wi B R EE

Low-income family in Mainland China

BEEENGRIBERAPL
HKSKH Lady MaclLehose Centre

PEREREREIEREE
Children from low-income family and the elderly that have fallen ill
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#nE OUR STAKEHOLDERS

BRTBEORMOBREMLE - KRREDBB Aside from caring for our customers and community, Fairwood
NEZHHERBFERHE - 55 E L strives to maintain a close relationship with all stakeholders.
TRRBEBHEKEMBD  MBEMKXEZEER - Through multiple engagement channels, our stakeholders can
EBRMHOEBERYMIDE TS REFM  easily communicate their thoughts to us. This allows Fairwood to
ENTE  BRFHEMEBAFEEE  continuously improve its operations and to better cater to market

R and our stakeholders’ needs.
BHE®R SHRE RERY RS
Stakeholder Groups Engagement Channel Our Focus
o RERFAGRAE BRI
Annual general meeting and notices Financial performance
o Fif - MBBIRMDE ERABERRE
Annual reports, financial statements and Business sustainability
announcements
B&R / RE N EEEAE
Shareholders/ . g%%/%@ o Transparency
e irect communication
o KEE
Corporate website
o REEM®W
Investor briefings
o EEEL BmiE
Corporate website Food safety
o EHEABRER BENR MRS
W& Direct communication and emails High quality products and services
Customers . -
o REWEH EERAERER
Mass Media Comfortable environment
e [HBRE
Surveys
0 [Big Bang) A& KkHfh&H BE [WEEK] b
“Big Bang” meetings and other meetings Cultivate “Happy Team” culture
o [HUEROHE] REMES BB R TARBEREREN
News video clips and other newsletters Strive for self-improvement and
advancement
J [PRIEZREE | 2 ME _
BT e i o e 127 B TEARE
€a breaks ™ Focus Lroups Improve health and well-being
Employees -
O "f RIBHEEN "Fuﬁ% . - s T EEER S
Happy Index” questionnaires Improve work safety and environment
o HEHIRRE
Training courses
o BEREZ
Performance appraisals
RIEEEERAF

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



FHE®R
Stakeholder Groups

HLiEm

BHRRE

Engagement Channel

B E R R

Site visits and appraisals

ZYER

Bz HO B

Our Focus

HEZ2NMEZERM
Source for safe and high quality food

TEEBEMER

Suppliers Close communication Corporate reputation and ethics
o ITRERNMEXENH
Industry experience and expertise
BERME o BRHMT
Cooperate for employment Policy implementation
EEEE « REATHORERS
Direct communication Provide fair employment opportunities
S T . -
. . gl © SESELGH
Public Bodies Forums Business ethics
Byt s HERREREZE
Telephone calls Customer health and safety
[P
Face-to-face meetings
e IS o ITEERMBY
Seminars and workshops Industry experience and trends
fTRMAM EERS o BEENASHR
i Technical competence and experience
Industry Annual meeting p P!
Associations (T ° EBURMEER
Industry forums Business sustainability
e
Exhibitions
5P . oEeE
Interviews Corporate reputation
HESR o MEHEED
e Media briefings Branding activities
Media A3 o TRERRRHEEOER
Corporate website Sustainable development and contribution
to society
EEmE

Press conference
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Award Scheme /
Activities

FAIRWOOD'’S SUSTAINABILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, Fairwood understands the
importance of achieving economic, environmental and social
sustainability for the long term success of Fairwood's business.
Our sustainability recipe lays out our principles and actions for
managing and performing ethically and sustainably, throughout
our operational flow. At Fairwood, our actions are guided by our
mission of “Enjoy Great Food. Live a Great Life!” Therefore, we will
continue to deliver safe and quality food served by an enthusiastic
team, without endangering the environment. We will also continue
to provide hearty service to our customers and contribute back to
the community.

AWARDS

During the reporting year, the Group is honored to receive the
following awards, in recognition of its dedication and hard work
in each area:

B#E
Aim

815

Awards

BEREERS AL 2015 HERERTREHS fREPR 5 - 12 BN - BHEEN S - B
Customer Service Excellence Hong Kong Association for Service Appreciation Award - /UyEIBX
Award 2015 Customer Service Excellence  Gold Award To recognise employees’ motivation
in building our “Happy Team”

AR EL L R E BIRMBELTERER SEZERTHE ReEEINT2EHMLEE
(2015-2016) Labour Department and the ~ Group Safety Performance To promote and enhance safety
Catering Industry Safety Award ~ Occupational Safety and Awards awareness and practice among
Scheme (2015-2016) Health Council employees

ERABLERAE

Supervisor Awards

ZETRE

Safe Worker Awards

+NEHERE

18 Districts Caring Employers sHE

Labour and Welfare Bureau
and the Hong Kong Council

of Social Service

BTRENRDREELER

RETERERSMBRARR
AT

To offer equal employment
opportunity and development to
people with disability

[tN\REEEE] 528
18 Districts Caring Employers
Award

AT ERTE BEBEINR [ EE ] #2IA RHEFERFERSER
Manpower Development Employees Retraining Board ~ ERB Outstanding Award for ~ To offer equal employment

Scheme Employers opportunity and development
BUQuRC e i Rt B 1B = F R RERATL BRRFEALRE
The Salvation Army Employers'  Salvation Army Certificate of Employer's bS5+ BHR MR RIFT I e
Appreciation Ceremony Appreciation To provide employment and training

opportunities for the disabled,
people with special needs and other
underprivileged groups

AREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 64, is the Executive Chairman of
the Company and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr Lo graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course
on food and beverage management at New York University.
After completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo
returned to Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company.
Mr Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained as the Executive Chairman
of the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lo is a director of Neblett Investments Limited which
has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr Chan Chee Shing, aged 62, is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr Chan received
a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the University
of Manitoba, Canada in 1977 and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of East Asia, Macau
in 1987. Mr Chan has over 30 years' experience in marketing.
Prior to joining the Group, He worked as a senior executive for
a restaurant group which is listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr Chan joined the
Group in 1995. He was appointed a Director of the Company in
January 1998 and was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 1 January 2009. Mr Chan is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms Mak Yee Mei, aged 49, is the Executive Director and
Company Secretary of the Company. Ms Mak holds a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Economics, a Master of Science Degree in
Finance and a Master Degree in Business Administration. She is
an Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
as well as a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms Mak has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. Prior to joining
the Company, she had held senior management positions in
several companies the securities of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Ms Mak joined the Company in 2004 and was
appointed Executive Director, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative of the Company on 1 January 2010. She is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Ng Chi Keung, aged 67, is the Non-executive Director of the
Company, Members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr Ng holds a Master Degree
in Business Administration. He is an Associate Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr Ng has over
30 years' experience in finance and management. Prior to joining
the Group, he held senior management positions with a number
of well-known local and overseas multinational companies. Mr
Ng joined the Group in 1994 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in November 1995. He was re-designated as a Non-
executive Director of the Company from 1 January 2010 following
his retirement from the Group. At the same time, Mr Ng was also
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee and remains as a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Ng
is an Independent Non-executive Director of Soundwill Holdings
Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, aged 68, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1991. He
is also a Member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Chan graduated
from The University of Hong Kong, the University of Strathclyde
and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of Business
Administration Degree and a Master of Education Degree. He is a
Fellow Member of the Institute of Human Resources Management.
Mr Chan has over 40 years’' experience in human resources
development in public, commercial and educational sectors and
is actively engaged in the professional development of student
affairs practitioners and high school careers teachers professional
developments in China and Hong Kong.
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Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, aged 63, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
September 2000. He is also the Members of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr
Lau holds a Doctorate Degree in Business Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA Degree from
the University of Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist
Studies from The University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Society of
Certified Management Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau had over
12 years of management and accounting experience in the private
and public sectors in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in
1987. Dr Lau is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive of
Giordano International Limited which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. He is also the Chairman of the Advisory
Committees on management and marketing at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University as well as Adjunct Professor of Marketing at
City University of Hong Kong.

Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo, aged 51, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in November 2008. He is
also a Member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr Tsoi
graduated from the University of Western Ontario, Canada with
an Honours Degree in Business Administration in 1986. Mr Tsoi
was formerly an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of Varitronix International Limited; Executive Director of ReQOrient
Group Limited; Non-executive Director of Concord New Energy
Group Limited and Zhidao International (Holdings) Limited, all
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He was also
formerly the Deputy Chairman of the supervisory board of Data
Modul AG, which is listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.
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Mr Peter Wan Kam To, aged 63, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2009. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Wan is a Fellow
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He was
a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong & China firm
and a practicing accountant in Hong Kong for over 30 years
with extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory and
management. Mr Wan is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
namely China Resources Land Limited, Dalian Port (PDA) Company
Limited, Harbin Bank Co., Ltd., Huaneng Renewables Corporation
Limited, Kerry Logistics Network Limited, KFM Kingdom Holdings
Limited, S. Culture International Holdings Limited, Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd. and Target Insurance (Holdings)
Limited. Mr Wan is also the Treasurer and Council Member of
the Open University of Hong Kong. Mr Wan was formerly an
Independent Director of Mindray Medical International Limited (a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, USA) and RDA
Microelectronics, Inc. (a company listed on the NASDAQ) and an
Independent Non-executive Director of GreaterChina Professional
Services Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) has pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F, TRP
Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
173 and 174 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the “Business Review"” and “Prospects”
set out on pages 9 to 14 of this Annual Report. The information
related to food quality and safety, compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have significant impact, customers,
employees, suppliers, community and environmental protection
are set out on pages 18 to 56 of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report. This discussion forms part of this Report of
the Directors.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 3(b) to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of
revenue and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30% (2015: less than
30%) of the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively.

6



62

EEERE

Report of the Directors

B

ARARER-_E—HAF+-_A=1+HIRE%
PR EBAR31.08IM(=ZZ—HRF : 280
FEAL) AR o BARR B HR0.0BIL(=F —
hF &) ERCREZUEE-_ZT—X
FZA=+T—HILFERBERBRESR
S5.08MI(ZZE— R F : 52.081l) KR
REE B BRAS.0B(I(ZZF—RF: |) -

EEAm
AEBRFALEREZBH(ZE—RF :
7B#168,0007T) °

BRE

RERN ARRIRBEBEREEC %
1,102,000 B B ENEBBHERXZMAE
PR AR (B3P ) BB 697,500 AN A Al Ak
7 o F A O DA R RUIR T BB R P
TNEEZE  ARAARARFARARKE
BHIEHIIN M B RAMEE23 -

BR B 75 3 2% M G2 23()(i) P B DI O R A 41
ARABHEMEMMBERRRNFALER
A HEFBERIARQRN EHES

EE
AFBFREMBEARRS T B H LR
ARAEE(EEDWT :

BITES
RHEG(BTLE)
BRER (TTEAEEL)
BT

FHTES
REE

WY TEE
mEE
2|
B
F

AREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK31.0 cents (2015: HK28.0 cents) per
share and a special interim dividend of HK9.0 cents (2015: Nil)
per share was paid on 30 December 2015. The Board now
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK55.0 cents
(2015: HK52.0 cents) per share and a special final dividend of
HK45.0 cents (2015: Nil) per share in respect of the year ended 31
March 2016.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$Nil (2015: HK$168,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued 1,102,000 ordinary shares
in the Company pursuant to share option schemes and purchased
697,500 shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Shares were repurchased
during the year to reduce the dilutive effect of granting share
options. Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

Save as set out in note 23(c)(ii) to the financial statements, there
were no other purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company'’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To
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(a) RA QA A

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Bye-laws 109 and 189(viii) of the Company,
Ms Mak Yee Mei and Mr Ng Chi Keung shall retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and Ms Mak Yee Mei
and Mr Ng Chi Keung, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company

SREERRIEER
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each

REBRE
BEL Ll EEBTRHG
EARE RirEs Gl i Hbgs RH%E 4y BEEAH
Number of
underlying
shares Percentage
pursuant of total
Personal Family ~ Corporate Other to Share issued
interests interests interests interests Option Total shares
EHG Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 109,000 - - 55435384 - 55,544,384 4382%
(Rtz1)
(Note 1)
X Chan Chee Shing 800,000 - - - 700,000 1,500,000 1.18%
Bam Mak Yee Mei 1,000,000 - - - 400,000 1,400,000 1.10%
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(b) RAPEREBBR AT ([ KRFRE )
MR

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

(@) Interests in the Company (continued)

Note 1: These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited
(“Neblett”) and CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ"). The companies
are beneficially owned by two separate trusts of which Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trusts as a
discretionary object and as the Executive Chairman of the
Company, was deemed interested in the shares held by
Neblett and CFJ.

(b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited (“FFFL")

BREBEERAHA
Number of non-voting deferred shares
AR Rk RS HitiEs By
Personal Family ~ Corporate Other
interests interests interests interests Total
#55 Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 11,500 - - 279,357 290,857
(Hf22)
(Note 2)
MizE2 : bt % A& 19 HPengto International Note 2: These shares were held by Pengto International Limited
Limited ([Pengto NI H < ZAGEIE— ("Pengto”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of
EAZE B S E RIS T%E’ﬂm which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr

HRERER - BERGTEREER
ZIETNINEEREROER - X5
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Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trust
as a discretionary object and as the Executive Chairman of
the Company, was deemed interested in the shares held by
Pengto.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the section
“Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March 2016, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their
spouses or children under eighteen years of age had any other
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Details of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests under the

EERERTHRABREARR R BRES

ST B ERFBEMEN T X[ EAR#EET  Company’s share option scheme are also set out in the section
2l]—8h o “Share Option Scheme” below.

M Bt & SHARE OPTION SCHEME

RZE—RF= )EJ =+—H ' ZARFAEM Asat 31 March 2016, the Company maintained two share option

EREESE - DA -—TE_FRERE
AEIR T —FRERERE - ZFE
ZABWT

schemes, namely, the 2002 Option Scheme and 2011 Option
Scheme. Details of these schemes are as follows:

(a) — 7 = _iﬂﬁﬂﬁ*ﬁ—f%
—EE_FBRESECENEERR

(a) 2002 Option Scheme
The purpose of the 2002 Option Scheme was to attract and

NBZEBERRALBREE/IANT
AR RIS B 2 B A & 8 s (E (AT BA
A REA - RER - BHAA - BRI
TJEPﬁ BE AR BmERBERM
2EH(—TZE_FAERARAD
TEINEE)  REERBRERAA
&%%Zﬂﬁ?& C M EAR R R REM
X3 °

R-TZ_FERESAT  EFE
BRENBEBSEIMNESE(BEIFENTE
ERBUNTES)REA_FTT =

¢/\§T§7¥<?ﬁ\ﬁz FERHE - ARBEA
NERD - AERTFER T =ZHF
ME=E  WNBEREXTEMERRE

BT ARERABHO/MODWTE
(N BEERER TR AEEEA
TEEE X P A RBRATHRA D F Uk
MERNVROEE - BE_ZTT=_F
BREE - S2HEERBEERER
FEBIEMER+ @R BERER
AP EE TR BB AR R B BTG A
1% °

retain the best quality personnel for the development of
the Company’s businesses; to provide additional incentives
to any employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or any
consultant, agent, representative, advisor, supplier of goods or
services, customer, contractor, business ally and joint venture
partner (the “2002 Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and
to promote the long term financial success of the Company by
aligning the interests of option holders to shareholders of the
Company.

Under the 2002 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-
executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director)
or any of the 2002 Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee to take
up options to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
which shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer and (jii) the nominal value of a
share. The maximum entitlement for any one participant under
the 2002 Option Scheme shall not in any 12 months period up
to the date of grant exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in
issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(a) 2002 Option Scheme (continued)
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On 7 September 2011, the Company terminated the 2002
Option Scheme and adopted the 2011 Option Scheme on the
same date. As a result of the termination, no further options
may be granted under the 2002 Option Scheme but the
options that have been granted and remained outstanding
as of that date under such scheme remain effective. As
at 29 June 2016, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2002 Option Scheme (being share options
granted but remained outstanding) is 160,000 shares which
represented approximately 0.13% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at that date.

(b) 2011 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2011 Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; to provide incentives or rewards to
any employee, Director (including Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Director) or officer of any member
of the Group or any related trust or company (the “2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote the
long term financial success of the Company by aligning the
interests of option holders to shareholders of the Company.

Under the 2011 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any of the 2011 Option Scheme
Qualifying Grantee to take up options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price which shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of offer
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

As at 29 June 2016, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Option Scheme is 6,173,528 shares
which represented approximately 4.86% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date. The maximum
entitlement for any one participant under the 2011 Option
Scheme shall not in any 12 months period up to the date of
grant exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue.

The life of the 2011 Option Scheme is 10 years commencing
on 7 September 2011 and expiring on 6 September 2021.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Directors and
employees of the Group had the following interests in options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per share
at 31 March 2016 was HK$26.45 (2015: HK$20.20)) granted for
HK$1 consideration under the 2002 Option Scheme and 2011
Option Scheme respectively. As at 31 March 2016, the total
grant date fair value of unexercised vested options and unvested
options, measured in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 1(r) to the financial statements, amounted to HK$NIil
(2015: HK$1,281,000) and HK$8,006,000 (2015: HK$532,000)
respectively. The options are unlisted. Once vested, each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
of HK$1 each of the Company. Assuming that all the options
outstanding as at 31 March 2016 are exercised, the Company will
receive proceeds of HK$126,652,000 (2015: HK$9,617,000).

(i) 2002 Option Scheme

H-%-1% Ho%-RE SRR
BA-H Zh=1-8 SEERE  fRAAN
AR ERERN O ERAME EMERN kM §k BN Shing
#58 k88 BREEE EhEsR BhEsR  BRERS ERESE fikE  SRUWE  TOUOE
Weighted
average price
Closing price ~ of closing price
per share per share
Number Number immediately  immediately
of options Number of Number of Number of of options before date before date
Exercisable  outstandingat ~ options granted  options lapsed optionsexercised  outstanding at ~ Exercise price of grant of exercise
Date granted period 1April 2015 duringtheyear  duringtheyear ~ duringtheyear 31 March 2016 per share of options of options
Rtm(E%) 5N CE-TEMA-EE 800,000 - - (800,000 - Beer  Ebewr  ERDUR
Chan Chee Shing MANR  —E-7%zf=1-A HK$6.26 HK$6.28 HKS2240
(Director 8 Apr 2009 (i)
1 April 201010
31 March 2016
(Note 1)
Ra(22) E 2 -f——ﬁ— -A% 80,000 - - (80,00 - e AR ERuam
Mak Yee Ve A8 ZERETIAzT-R HKsB.08 HKs807 HKS21.20
(Diector) 1 March 2010 (Wik2)
1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016
(Note 2)
k& ERNE CT-REMA-RE 20 - - (42,000) - EMeer EMewr  ERMu
Employees MANR  ZE-3%=f=t-R HK$6.26 HK$6.28 HK$24.04
8 Apr 2009 (Hzt1)
1 Apil 201010
31 March 2016
(Note 1)
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ﬂﬁﬂﬂEﬂ'iﬂ (%) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(i) —EE-_FBERETE(E) (i) 2002 Option Scheme (continued)
H-%-1% HZB-7E ShERE
RA-H ZA=t-8 BRERE  fkEER
AOEN  FRESN  ERAME EAGREN PRIk sk RFRAEN Shing
sl fig%®  BReEmE BRESE EhEgA BREdR BRESE R SRURE  THUWE
Weighted
average price
Closing price of closing price
per share per share
Number Number immediately  immediately
of options Number of Number of Number of of options before date before date
Erercsable ~ outstandingat  optionsgranted  options lapsed  optionsexercised  outstandingat  Exercise price of grant of exercise
Date granted period  1Aprl 2015 duringthe year ~ during the year  during the year 31 March 2016 per share of options of options
Eg Bk CI-CECA5RE 200 - - (20000 - Efor ERoar  EReam
Employee “RtAR ZB-tECATER HK$10.90 HK$10.92 HK$26.10
16 February 2011 (Hid3)
16 February 2012
to 15 February 2017
(Note 3)
8 E—f CE-CERARAR 320000 - - (160,000) 6000 E¥osr  EEONT  E¥DST
Enployee BRAR CR-AREALA HK$1088 HK$1082 2285
9May 2011 (i)
9IMay 201210
8 May 2019
(Note 4)

MiEEt - BB D HEIR20% LA TR ©  Note 1: These options shall vest in five tranches of 20% each with the

F-HR-_ZT-ZFOA—REE 2 1st tranche on 1 April 2010, 2nd tranche on 1 April 2011, 3rd
“HRZE——FMNA—HEREB - F= tranche on 1 April 2012, 4th tranche on 1 April 2013 and the
HR=—ZT——FHA—BHKE FWOH last tranche on 1 April 2014;

RIZE—=5TA-BEBIREZ
R-T-NFMA—-RRE

Mi5E2 : IR D AEAR20% LA TR EHE © Note 2: These options shall vest in five tranches of 20% each with the

F—HR-_ZT——F—H—BAEE 2 1st tranche on 1 January 2011, 2nd tranche on 1 January 2012,
“HRZZE-——ZF—-A—AKE F= 3rd tranche on 1 January 2013, 4th tranche on 1 January 2014
HR-ZZ—=F—A—HH%E - - F0H and the last tranche on 1 January 2015;

R-ZZE-—NF-A-BEBRRE
R_T—AF—A—REE:

M3 BIRES AHE20% R A TREEE ©  Note 3: These options shall vest in five tranches of 20% each with the 1st

E—HR-_T——F=-A+XH E%E . tranche on 16 February 2012, 2nd tranche on 16 February 2013,
E_HR_T-—=F"_A+BEE " 3rd tranche on 16 February 2014, 4th tranche on 16 February
FEZHR T —EF=-A+H Eﬁq% 2015 and the last tranche on 16 February 2016; and

FNHR —_Z—HAF_A+"BREEX
EE—HR-_E-—X"F-_A+ 85

B R

Mizta : BEIRED THIR20%IZA TR ESHE ©  Note 4: These options shall vest in five tranches of 20% each with the
E—BR_T——_FRANBEE % 1st tranche on 9 May 2012, 2nd tranche on 9 May 2013, 3rd
“HRZZE-=FhANBEE F= tranche on 9 May 2014, 4th tranche on 9 May 2015 and the last
HR—_Z-—NFERANBEREE - EHE tranche on 9 May 2016.

R-ZE—RAFRANBEBERZE B
RZZE—RNERAANBEES -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(ii) 2011 Option Scheme

HZ%-1f HZB-AE SRERE
BA-A Zhzt-8 PEERE  AERENR
AR EREFN O ERAMR EmORN kM Sk BN Shig
il fk%E  BREHE EhEgR ERESE BhRgE LheLE RE  SRUFE  THUGE
Weighted
average price
Closing price~ of closing price
per share per share
Number Number immediately  immediately
of options Number of Number of Number of of options beforedate  before date
Exercsable  outstandingat optionsgranted  options lapsed  optionsexercised  outstandingat  Exercise price of grant of exercise
Date granted period 1April 2015 duringtheyear  duringtheyear  duringtheyear 31 March 2016 per share of options of options
Rin(22) E-BF ERERA-EE - 700,000 - - Wm0 EEnOT AE0MT =
Chan Chee Shing L5 - S o HK$20.70 HK$2080
(Drector) 20 Apl 2015 (i:7)]
1 Aprl 2016 t0
31 March 2022
(Note 2)
kazs) E-BF ERERA-EE - 400000 - - oo EENT BT =
Mak Yee Vel L) - S o HK$20.70 HK$2080
Diectoy 20 Apr 2015 (i)
1 Aprl 20160
31 March 2022
(Note 2)
B E-BF ERERA-EE - 40000 - - oo ER0T EE0NT =
Employee (Note 1) MAZTA —3-"£=A=1-H HK$20.70 HK$2080
20 A 015 ()
1 Aprl 20160
31 March 2022
(Note 2)
8 E-RE CE-ERA-RE - 4990000 (160,000 - 4000 EENTT  EE80T =
Employees MAZTR —3-£=f=1-R HK$20.70 HK$2080
20 April 015 ()
1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022
(Note 2
[ o A - 60,000 - - 000 EEnaT  AENAT =
Emplojee tAzB  ZEZZEAAZHR Hk$22.20 HK$21.90
20cober 2015 ()
1 October 2016 to
30 September 2022

(Note3)
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MBRRiERtEI(2) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(i) —E——FBERETE(E) (ii) 2011 Option Scheme (continued)
MEET - BIEAEERMITREBTIEHNITE Note 1: Mr Lo Fai Shing, Francis who holds the position of Executive
FRRGEEZR T Manager, is also the son of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung,
Executive Chairman of the Company;
M52 - BRES ARZRUATHESRS - 8 Note 2: These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on
—H0%N_ZE—R"FHA—BEH 1 April 2016, 15% on 1 April 2017, 20% on 1 April 2018,
B FES%R_E—tFNA 25% on 1 April 2019 and the remaining 30% on 1 April
—HB%EB - FZH20%RZ=ZZ—N 2020; and

FNA—BRB - FOEH255%N =
Z-NFOA—BREBXRE—H
30%R_ZE_ZTFNMA—HBRE;

&

WEE3 : BRES AHRUTKERE - $ Note 3: These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1
—H10%R=_ZE—X"F+A—BE October 2016, 15% on 1 October 2017, 20% on 1 October
B F 5% _E—+F+A 2018, 25% on 1 October 2019 and the remaining 30% on
—HEBB  F=#20%R 2N 1 October 2020.

F+A—AHB - FWOE255%N =
Z-NEF+A—BRBERE 5
30% N —_E-_ZF+A—HEBE -

FHERTHERENGHBRMEHER  Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
BEMEFHENER  SREHNRPEHR  and the weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(r)
FMIFE(NG)FIMIFE20 © (i) and note 20 to the financial statements respectively.

Br bt B SN - RAFEANEMER - 22  Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the

AIREE A E AR EB8EEMZH - Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to

BEARRIES T ABZHEME[  enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of

BB e AW+ N\ B H) F R A] LA BB AZX  their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire

NEl B AR EE (B E ZHIEHIAT  benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

HHER)NRD I EEZMER - Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.
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RELAFTBREFINEERES SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE

COMPANY
BRARNFERILFGHEI6GEEETT  As at 31 March 2016, the interests or short positions of every
WELMET A EMIFKXRAAAFE  person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
W BARBIESFERESTHAES - H  Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
MATRZZFE-—RF=ZA=+T—H#EBA asrecorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
NEIRGD RAEER D EERSOR BT ¢ pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, were as follows:

BEER /.  HEBITRE
BEFENRE HEYEIL

Shares directly Percentage
and/or of total
indirectly held  issued shares
(i)  Neblett(F#3E1) (i) Neblett (Note 1) 48,775,384 38.48%
(i CFJ (i) CF 6,660,000 5.25%
(iii)  Winning Spirit International (i) ~ Winning Spirit International
Corporation([ WSIC |) Corporation (“WSIC")
(BiFE1) (Note 1) 48,775,384 38.48%
(iv)  HSBC International Trustee (iv)  HSBC International Trustee
Limited ([HITL))(Ff5E2) Limited (“HITL") (Note 2) 55,452,384 43.75%
(v)  Allard Partners Limited (v)  Allard Partners Limited (“APL")
(TAPL)(Bft5E3) (Note 3) 7,727,600 6.10%
(vi)  Allard Partners Management (vi)  Allard Partners Management
Ltd. ([APMLJ)(Ffi5E3) Ltd. (“APML") (Note 3) 7,727,600 6.10%
(vii)  ANLCM Investments Pty Ltd  (vii) ANLCM Investments Pty Ltd
(TANLCM ) (Bt 5E3) (“ANLCM") (Note 3) 7,727,600 6.10%
(viii) Wayne Victor Allard Peters (viii)  Wayne Victor Allard Peters
(TWVAP ) (Ft7E3) ("WVAP") (Note 3) 7,727,600 6.10%
(ix)  Sheva Nominees Pty Ltd (ix)  Sheva Nominees Pty Ltd
(I SNPLJ)(HI5E3) ("SNPL") (Note 3) 7,727,600 6.10%
(x)  Howard Kantor ([HK]) (x)  Howard Kantor (“HK")
(Mi5E3) (Note 3) 7,727,600 6.10%
(xi) Hayley Symon ([HSJ)(Fi7£3) (xi)  Hayley Symon (“HS") (Note 3) 7,727,600 6.10%
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Note 1: These interests represented the same block of shares directly
held by Neblett. WSIC owned 100% interest in Neblett and
was therefore deemed interested in the shares directly held by
Neblett;

Note 2: Except for 17,000 shares held by HITL as trustee for other trusts,
these interests represented the same block of shares directly
held by Neblett and CFJ. HITL, in its capacity as a trustee of two
separate trusts of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is the founder
and discretionary object, owned 100% interest in WSIC and CFJ
and was therefore deemed interested in the shares directly held
by these companies; and

Note 3: These interests represented the same block of shares directly held
by APL. APML owned 100% interest in APL and was therefore
deemed interested in the shares directly held by APL. WVAP
owned 100% interest in ANLCM which in turn owned 60%
interest in APML whereas HK & HS each owned 50% interest in
SNPL which, in its capacity as a trustee, owned 40% interest in
APML. As such, WVAP, ANLCM, HK, HS and SNPL were deemed
interested in the shares directly held by APL through their
interests in APML.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 March 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The particulars of continuing connected transaction of the Group
is set out below in compliance with the reporting requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony”)

As detailed in note 27(c) to the financial statements, FFFL leased a
property from Hibony for three years from 1 March 2015 for the
operation of a fast food restaurant. As Hibony is an associate of
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of the Company), the entering
into the lease constituted continuing connected transaction for
the Company. Details of rent and deposits paid by FFFL relating to
the property for the above transaction are as follows:

—E— A% —z—Af

2016 2015

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

REFEHES Rent for the year 3,036 2,539
Heks Rental deposits 759 759

REE ETARRE VAT AR LB+
BRERS (BB NMRTE - BILKE
WITEECEMAMBREEBRS ¢

() E—RRAEXBBEPET

(i) MB—RERGHBRBTERAEE
BT REIBILE = IR AR REETT

(iii) %2 FR AR B 76 B8 X 5 1Y 16p & BT L Y 16 5K
(BRAFREE  BFEERATIRE
HERME)ET &

(VEBE-_ZT—R"F=ZA=T—HILFE "
BERXSGNBETNBEATFREEHE -

In compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in connection
with the above continuing connected transaction with Hibony (the
“Transaction”), the Independent Non-executive Directors have
reviewed and confirmed that the Transaction has been entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of agreement governing the
Transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv) the aggregate value of the Transaction for the year ended
31 March 2016 has not exceeded the maximum aggregate
annual value.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save as the transaction disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transaction”, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save for the share option schemes as set out in this annual
report, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes as set out in this annual report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that required the Company to enter
into an agreement that would or might result in the Company
issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DEBENTURES
During the year, the Company did not issue any debenture.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-law of the Company, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

BANK LOANS
Particulars of bank loans of the Group at 31 March 2016 are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 175 of the
annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown
on page 176 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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53 ] AUDITORS

E2REHGHMEBAMEMER - WHEBEE KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
B - AEZ2RABEBFREMKREEF K reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
gL REAESHEHMEBKAMETEAR  auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
N ENZEREM AR o annual general meeting.

AEEGD
By order of the Board

EHRE
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
#ITERE

Executive Chairman

BB ZE-REXAZTNA
Hong Kong, 29 June 2016
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, save and except that
the Chairman and/or Managing Director (Chief Executive Officer)
of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation, details
of which and the reasons for the deviation are stated below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by the Directors of the Company (the “Directors”).
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All Directors have taken decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of all Directors, as such, it has adopted
terms of reference for corporate governance functions that are in
line with the CG Code.

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control, financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Company. With the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. Directors may choose to take independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Executive Committee
which comprises the three Executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
above-mentioned officers.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")
Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The representation of INEDs is
more than one third of the Board. A list containing the names of
the Directors with their roles and functions has been published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 57 to 60
of this annual report. There is no relationship among directors of
the Board and in particular, between the Executive Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received from each of the INED an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of
any relationship or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of the independent judgment of the INEDs. Accordingly,
the Company considers that all the INEDs are independent.

Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2016 and attendance record of each Director is set out
below:

HERY, EBRY
Number of meetings attended/held

HITES
BFHB(BITEE)

ER(TTBAE)
Rtk

FUTES
RE

BYFHITES
PBREEF
2B
ERZ
FERH

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mak Yee Mei 4/4
Non-executive Director

Ng Chi Keung 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors

Joseph Chan Kai Nin 4/4
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 2/4
Peter Wan Kam To 4/4
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All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual
and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The statement of the auditor
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Company is set out on pages 86 and
87 in the independent auditor’s report. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, confirm that there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast doubt
upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development activities
either by attending training courses or by reading materials to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and skills of a director of a listed corporation.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Chan Chee Shing respectively
whose roles are segregated and are not exercised by the same
individual.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years; however, the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation under the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board considers that
the exemption of both the Chairman and the Managing Director
(the Chief Executive Officer) of the Company from such retirement
by rotation provisions would provide the Group with strong
and consistent leadership, efficient use of resources, effective
planning, formulation and implementation of long-term strategies
and business plans. The Board believes that it would be in the
best interest of the Company for such Directors to continue to be
exempted from retirement by rotation provisions.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Bye-laws to appoint any
person as a director of the Company either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director are available at the
website of the Company.

According to the Bye-laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election; and (ii) at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors (other than any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director) for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
provided that each Director (other than any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director) including those appointed for
a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Currently, all Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by the shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs, Dr Peter Lau
Kwok Kuen and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are in line with the
CG Code and available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies and
recommends to the Board suitable candidate(s) to stand for
election by shareholders at annual general meeting, or when
necessary, to fill vacancies on the Board.

Under the Policy for diversity, appointment of Board members
will be made on merit with due regard of benefits of diversity on
the Board such as having differences in the skills, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, gender, age
and other qualities of directors. The Board believes that the policy
will promote effective decision-making and better governance and
allow the Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions
to corporate issues.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board; to assess the independence of INEDs and to
make recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
directors.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERY,EERE

Number of meetings attended/held

BITES
EFH(L/E)

BYFHTES
F B
FiE

Executive Director
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman) 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 1/
Peter Wan Kam To 11
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, Mr Joseph
Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and one Non-
executive Director, Mr Ng Chi Keung. Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Remuneration
Committee adopts written terms of reference that are in line with
the CG Code and are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration
Committee met once to review the remuneration of Directors and
the attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERY,EBRY
Number of meetings attended/held

BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

PRESEF (/%) Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 11

2B Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 11

FEHTES Non-executive Director

RER Ng Chi Keung 1/1
ERZERY AUDIT COMMITTEE
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director, Mr
Ng Chi Keung and three INEDs, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Mr Tony
Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr Peter Wan Kam To and meets at least twice a
year with the Company’s auditor.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant
or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal
auditor or external auditors before submission to the Board for
approval. It is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature
of the external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee has written terms of reference which are in line with
the CG Code and are available on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of
external auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit; to review
the internal audit programme, findings and management'’s
responses; and to evaluate the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERY, EBRY
Number of meetings attended/held

BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

FERE(FE) Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 22

BREEF Joseph Chan Kai Nin 22

BER=x Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 2/2

FHITES Non-executive Director

RETR Ng Chi Keung 172
B & AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

RZB-—RE=ZA=+—BIEFERN " #
AR AZEED R R O T2 MO R RIS A
SRS TREmMOBERMT

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditor of the Company were as follows:

—E—R —_FT—F

2016 2015

BT BET

$'000 $'000

FHIXEENE Review fee for interim results 530 530

PEEEELE Audit fee for final results 3,115 3,024
BIRRBIIEE B RISH FERFIZ RS Non-audit services which covered

provision of tax compliance services 643 417

1axs Total 4,288 3,971

LEWE COMPANY SECRETARY

BRBNBR/RARRZ ARIMERNITE
FoERNAIME  F/NEIEESFTEIN
HREFSNEZHEENZRRLE UK
BREFSREFLAMBERZEE  RA
NIEH - RZE—RE=ZA=+—HIF

BEA > REEX APV TANE ZHEZE
E=

Ms Mak Yee Mei is the Company Secretary and Executive Director
of the Company. As the Company Secretary, Ms Mak supports the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
the Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations
are followed. During the year ended 31 March 2016, she
undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group's internal
control system includes a well defined management structure
with limits of authority which is designed for the achievement of
business objectives, safeqguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensure maintenance of proper books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant legislations
and regulations. The Board conducts regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control system.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company's developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly.

All Directors had attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 9 September 2015 with the attendance record
as follows:

HERE,ERRE
Number of meetings attended/held

HITES Executive Directors

EREG (HTERE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 11
EX(TTEAEE,) Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 11

BT Mak Yee Mei 1/1

FHITES Non-executive Director

RER Ng Chi Keung 1/1

BIUKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

PREEF Joseph Chan Kai Nin 11

2| Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 1/1

R Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 1/1

F i Peter Wan Kam To 11

KIREEEERAF

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION (continued)
Procedures on how shareholders can convene a special general
meeting, put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings and
propose a person for election as a director are also available at
Company's website for shareholders’ information.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company's website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has published an up-to-date consolidated version
of its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year ended
31 March 2016, there has been no change to these Company’s
constitutional documents.
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 88 to 172, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2016 and of the Group’s financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2016
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2016 2015

BitaE Fr Tt

Note $'000 $'000

A Revenue 3(a) 2,427,973 2,244,885

SHERZAR Cost of sales (2,040,943) (1,910,638)

EF Gross profit 387,030 334,247

HAbgA Other revenue 4 9,231 6,684

HithEi8 55 Other net losses 4 (8,417) (3,659)
HEFEFENIERSEE  Net gain on disposal of non-current assets

W25 558 held for sale 13 11,710 =
HEER Selling expenses (26,239) (31,405)
THRER Administrative expenses (119,217) (108,683)
ME - HeRFIRED Impairment losses on property,

VERET plant and equipment 10(d) (8,916) (16,406)
WEMEMLERE Valuation loss on investment properties 10(a), 10(b) (2,110) (607)
R Profit from operations 243,072 180,171
RE AR Finance costs 5(a) (171) (70)
BRBL AT R Profit before taxation 5 242,901 180,101
FR15Ht Income tax 6(a) (42,123) (36,134)
A TR R RE Profit for the year attributable to

EEERF equity shareholders of the Company 200,778 143,967
BREF Earnings per share 9
EHR Basic 158.62 flicents 114.13 fllicents
e Diluted 157.53 flicents 113.35 fllicents

F6EF172AMNMTB A SRR AN —IB
Do BNARNAEEREAREMNFE

IR EE23(b)

88 RIREEBER D E

the Company are set out in note 23(b).

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The notes on pages 96 to 172 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
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2016 2015
Fx T
$'000 $'000
A TR R RENS Profit for the year attributable to
REERF equity shareholders of the Company 200,778 143,967
AFEEHMBR2EKE Other comprehensive income for the year:
BERJREEH 7473 Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
BmA)EE - profit or loss:
Ha eh B 4 B B R ) Exchange differences on translation of financial
B RERAE L E5E statements of subsidiaries in Mainland China (2,266) 146
AT RERRREN Total comprehensive income for the year
rEEEHKEERE attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company 198,512 144,113

FIEF 172N EB AT BHERN &
g

statements.

The notes on pages 96 to 172 form part of these financial




90
—

—E—-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
B EE Fr Tt
Note $'000 $'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
"EWE Investment properties 38,670 40,780
HhWsE - HEsTIRE Other property, plant and equipment 378,955 335,403
e EREREARN Interests in leasehold land held for own
TR E R use under operating leases 6,616 6,828
10(a) 424,241 383,011
[HE Goodwill 11 1,001 1,001
BEREESES Rental deposits paid 51,670 51,470
Hih & m&E Other financial assets 12 8,405 8,835
BEERIBEEE Deferred tax assets 21(b) 306 427
485,623 444,744
REVEE Current assets
REFENERSEE Non-current assets held for sale 13 - 19,283
FE Inventories 14(a) 36,911 38,517
JE L B RN EL b e U R Trade and other receivables 15 70,706 60,373
Hive g EE Other financial assets 12 - 89
] Y4z [a] A HAFR 2 Current tax recoverable 21(a) - 72
RITIERAIR S Bank deposits and cash 16 548,607 419,022
656,224 537,356
REBEE Current liabilities
FEASTBR SRANEL A FE A 3R Trade and other payables 17 363,860 290,972
RITER Bank loans 18 3,053 4,387
JE{S AR HATR 18 Current tax payable 21(a) 16,102 12,824
A Provisions 22 13,320 11,664
396,335 319,847
REBEEZFEE Net current assets 259,889 217,509
EEHSERREBERS Total assets less current liabilities 745,512 662,253
KIEEBEBRAA

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2016 2015
=3 Fr T
Note $'000 $'000
B =Ri Non-current liabilities

RITER Bank loans 18 3,583 6,636
EERIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 21(b) 19,394 16,924
BREEIES Rental deposits received 2,007 1,765
AEf Provisions 22 44,190 36,764
69,174 62,089
EEFE NET ASSETS 676,338 600,164

EAXRNFEE Capital and reserves 23
[ Share capital 126,745 126,341
G Reserves 549,593 473,823
R TOTAL EQUITY 676,338 600,164

EEEeN_ZT—FEANA-+HLB®EIL Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29

s

faradd
B
)

R i

ERB
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITERE

Executive Chairman

96ZE 55172 B MM E B A 15 R 1) — &P

o

June 2016.

Chan Chee Shing

TTECAREL

Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 96 to 172 form part of these financial

statements.




ARREERREESS
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

A
BEY
BE  ROEE AxEE EREE  EtREE  REEH ag
Land and
buildings
Share Share Capital ~ Exchange revaluation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
i3 T T Tr T T T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R=E-MEmA-H At 1 April 2014 125,465 2,678 3,666 4,685 768 398000 535262
BE-Z-1F=A=1-A Changes in equity for year
LEEMERSE ended 31 March 2015:
KERRT Profit for the year - - - - - 143967 143967
B2 EkE Other comprehensive income = = - 146 = = 146
TEE2ANGESR Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 146 - 143967 144113
RERREHETHRG Shares issued under share option scheme 23(0)) 978 6122 = = = - 7100
¥1ER Issuie expenses - (51) _ _ _ _ 1)
FEEEIERRS Dividends approved in respect of the previous year 23(b)i) - - - - - (49295 (49,295
KEEEERARS Dividends declared in respect of the current year (b)) - - - - - (353700 (35370)
IMEREEN RN BRI S  Equity-settled share-based transactions 5(b), 23(0)i) = 1836 (1,692) = = = 144
BEASRA Repurchase of own shares
-EfiEE - par value paid 23(c)i) (102) = = = = = (102)
-BREERRSHA ~ premium and transaction costs paid 23(0)i) - (1,63 - - - - (163
R-2-EE=f=1-A At31 March 2015 126341 88 1974 483 768 457300 600,164

92 RIREEBER D E

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



RARRERREERS
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

1A
BEN
B RORE ExRE EXRE EREE  REEN &8
Land and
buildings
Share Share  Capital Exchange revaluation  Retained
capital ~ premium  reserve  reserve reserve profits Total
iz T T r r r r i
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
W=E-1FMA-H At 1 April 2015 126,341 8,948 1,974 4831 768 457,302 600,164
BE-Z-REZfA=t-H Changes in equity for year
LEEMERSE ended 31 March 2016:
REREF Profit for the year - - - - - 200778 200,778
EzEba Other comprehensive income - - - (2,266) - - (2266)
TEERENGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (2,266) - 200778 198512
BEERE R THRN Shares issuied under share option scheme 23(0) 1,102 6,774 - - - - 7,876
B1BR Issue expenses - 38) B B R . (39)
FEERHARRE Dividends approved in respect of the previous year 23(b)i) - - - - - (66,044)  (66,044)
KEEEERMRE Dividends declared in respect of the current year (b)) - - - - - (50,725)  (50,725)
IMEREEN RN BRI S  Equity-settled share-based transactions 5(b), 23()) - 1,547 708 - - - 2,255
BEAFRA Repurchase of own shares
-EfEE - par value paid 23(c)i) (698) - - - - - (698)
-ENRBRRSAA — premium and transaction costs paid 23()i) - (14,964) - - - - (14964)
EHEHHAMZENERE LI Release of land and building revaluation reserve upon
Mg disposal of land and buildings 13 - - - - (241) w1 -
R=B-AE=A=t-A At31 March 2016 126745 2267 2,682 2565 527 541552 676,338

FIEF 172N EB AT BHERN &
g

The notes on pages 96 to 172 form part of these financial

statements.
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ZE-RF “T-hF
2016 2015
i i Fr Fr Tr
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
gezH Operating activities
PR AT R Profit before taxation 242,901 180,101
HARER : Adjustments for:
ik ] Depreciation 5(c), 10(a) 78,657 82,128
ISR EREE RN Amortisation of interests in leasehold land

Tt ERREE held for own use under operating leases ~ 5(c), 10(a) 212 M

WE  BENMREDFESE  Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment 10(d) 8,916 16,406
HEREFENERDEE Net gain on disposal of non-current

ezl assets held for sale 13 (11,710) =
BALBETAESHEMSR  Changein fair value of other finandial assets

BENALBEZEY at fair value through profit or loss 5(a) - (260)
BARBETABRNEMSRE  Change in fair value of other financial

BEHLLEEED liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ~ 5(a) (66) (174)
FIEER Interest expense 5(a) 237 504
FISIA Interest income 4 (9.231) (6,684)

B RERERESER Provision for long service payments made 20) 7,699 839
REWE  HENREN Net loss on disposal of property,

EEFE plant and equipment 4 5,781 5218
RENEBEEE Valuation loss on investment properties 10(b) 2,110 607
DB E O AR R AR Equity-settled share-based payment

A expenses 5(b) 2,255 144

BELLRHALERT Operating profit before changes in working

capital 327,761 279,040
BEESMBE Changes in working capital:
BERD/(Ehn) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 1,606 (7,697)
BRALRSEM Increase in rental deposits paid (7,370) (1,177)
JEMR FRE b B MRS I Increase in trade and other receivables (2,978) (2,437)
R A E LM Increase in trade and other payables 48,653 21,418
ERESEEEM Increase in rental deposits received 51 290
BERARERELER Provision for long service payments utilised 22(a) (1,199) (1,079)
EEREERAES Provision for reinstatement costs utilised 22(b) (1,881) (3,158)
BEERELNES Cash generated from operations 364,643 285,200
BIHIE Interest received 9,046 6,324
BARFIE Interest paid (237) (505)
BREEMED Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (36,182) (29,890)
RETHELNRLTEEE  Net cash generated from operating

activities carried forward 337,270 261,129

RIREEEERAF
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2016 2015
MizE r Fr T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
EHSLEHELHNRETE  Netcash generated from operating
activities brought forward 337,270 261,129
REED Investing activities
BEEtSREEMSGIE Proceeds from redemption of other
financial assets - 7,565
BAME  BENREHR Payment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment (109,097) (87,618)
REEMME  EEARE Net proceeds from disposal of property,
FEsERE plant and equipment 18 1,118
SREENH Maturity on financial asset 89 _
HERBHENIERDEE Net proceeds from disposal of non-current
FiETE assets held for sale 13 30,993 =
B=EARIIBNRITER Placement of bank deposits with more
than three months to maturity 16 (43,146) -
REZBFANELTE Net cash used in investing activities (121,143) (78,935)
REEH Financing activities
REBRRE BB TR D Proceeds from shares issued under share
it option scheme 23(c)) 7,876 7,100
BIRGAEENER Expenses incurred in connection with the
issue of shares (38) (51)
B RG R Payment in relation to repurchase of shares 23(c)(i) (15,662) (1,739)
BRRE Dividends paid 23(b) (116,769) (84,665)
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (4,387) (18,494)
HRRTER Drawdown of bank loans - 8,600
MEZDFRANREEHE Net cash used in financing activities (128,980) (89,249)
REeNBLSENEMTE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 87,147 92,945
REA-AWEESNAEEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 419,022 326,058
EZ2BHTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (708) 19
REA=T-HNERE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
HREEEY 16 505,461 419,022

FIEF 172N EB AT BHERN &
g

The notes on pages 96 to 172 form part of these financial
statements.
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These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 2.

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group.

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed
below:

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-
2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related Party Disclosures has been amended to expand the
definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services to the
reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of the amounts
incurred for obtaining the key management personnel services
provided by the management entity. These amendments do
not have an impact on the group’s related party disclosures
as the group does not obtain key management personnel
services from management entities.
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Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(1)).

Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

1(1)).
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Held-to-maturity investment represents debt security that
the Group has the positive ability and intention to hold to
maturity. This investment is initially stated at fair value, which
is their transaction price unless fair value can be more reliably
estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below
and it is subsequently stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(])).

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in the profit
or loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 1(u)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(j)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied for other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 1()).
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The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(1)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land classified as held under operating leases (see note
1()); and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
situated thereon

30 - 50 years

— Leasehold improvements The remaining term of

the tenancy leases
— Air-conditioning plant The remaining term of
the tenancy leases

— Furniture and equipment 10% — 20% per annum

— Motor vehicles 15% per annum

— Computer system 25% per annum

Others 10% per annum

No depreciation is provided on initial purchases of cutlery
and utensils which are capitalised. Costs of subsequent
replacements are charged to profit or loss in the year when
the expenditure is incurred.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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a lease.

() AEEHEZENDE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
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(ii)

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 1(h)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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(i) Operating lease charges (continued)

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(I)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

0

Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets
that are stated at amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.
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(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables and other

financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss of trade and
other receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment losses
recognised in respect of trade debtors included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measureable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale if it is highly

probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a

sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the
asset is available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets is brought up-to-

date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and

until disposal, the non-current assets (except for investment
properties as explained below), are recognised at the lower

of their carrying amounts and fair value less costs to sell. For

investment properties, even if held for sale, would continue

1(h).

to be measured in accordance with the policy set out in note
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Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.
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Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(t)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. \Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.
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(i) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On the vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance
is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not be available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group's policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with note 1(t)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently carried
in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages
is recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discounts.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

(i) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual

basis.
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The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while that
for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is Renminbi.
The presentation currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(x) Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.
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(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1).

(vii)a person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Notes 11, 20 and 24 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment, fair value of share options granted and financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:
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Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to assess whether there is
any indication that property, plant and equipment may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the property, plant and equipment is estimated. Changes
in facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the
conclusion of whether an indication of impairment exists and
revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Property, plant and equipment other than cutlery and utensils
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group's
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are material
changes from previous estimates.

As described in note 10(b), the investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional surveyors after taking into
consideration the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates including
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition and expected future market rents. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market condition.

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") taxes. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for such taxes. There are
transactions during the ordinary course of business, for which
calculation of the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.
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Sale of food and beverages
Property rental

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the
management’s expectation of future taxable profit that will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

As explained in note 22(a), the Group makes provision for
long service payments in accordance with the requirement of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The Group has based
the estimation on its recent employees’ statistics and adopted
certain assumptions in assessing the provision for long service
payments. It is possible that these assumptions adopted by
the Group in assessing the provision for long service payments
may not be indicative of the future situation. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future
years.

As explained in note 22(b), the Group makes provision
for reinstatement costs based on the best estimate of the
expected costs to be incurred upon expiry of the respective
rental agreements, which are subject to uncertainty and might
differ from the actual costs incurred. Any increase or decrease
in the provision would affect profit or loss in future years.

The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments.

Revenue represents the sales value of food and beverages sold
to customers and rental income. An analysis of revenue is as
follows:

—T—RF
2015

FIit

$'000
2,239,027
5,858

2,244,885
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Further details regarding the Group's principal activities are
disclosed below:

The Group manages its businesses by two divisions, namely
Hong Kong restaurants and Mainland China restaurants, which
are organised by geographical location. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has identified the following two reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.
- Hong Kong restaurants: this segment operates fast
food restaurants in
Hong Kong.
— Mainland China restaurants: this segment operates fast
food restaurants in
Mainland China.

Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of
investment properties and include corporate expenses.

(i) Segment results
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Performance is measured based on segment profit before
taxation. ltems not specifically attributable to individual
segments are not allocated to the reportable segments.
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Segment results (continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
revenue) and cost of sales (including food cost, labour
cost, rent and rates and depreciation). The inter-segment
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms
and were priced with reference to prevailing market prices
and in the ordinary course of business.

Segment assets information is not reported or used by the
Group’s most senior executive management.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 March 2016 and 2015 is set out below.

BRRE TERERE Rt &%
Hong Kong Mainland China
restaurants restaurants Other segments Total

Z%-3 ZB-0F -7 CE-IF SR ZE-DF CR-0EF CE-0F

2016 2015 2016 2015 20162015 2016 2015
i T Tr T T T T T
§000  §000 o000 000 000 §000  §000 000

RENPEFRMA Revenue from external customers 2,284,510 2,068,587 136,164 170,440 7,299 5858 2,427,973 2,244,885
REABAPHRA Inter-segment revenue - - - - 500 5000 5000 5000
HEFHUA Reportable segment revenue 2084510 2,068587 136,164 170440 12,299 10,858 2,432,973 2,249,885
RENTER/ (F58R) Reportable segment profit/(loss) 229600 196,653 2,070 (8,207) 10,481 8234 242,151 196,680
MEKA Interest income 9180 6576 47 108 - S P E T 1

FAEFFISE Interest expense on bank loans 37 504 - - - - 237 504
FEANEH Depreciation and amortisation 73783 73389 4,207 8,054 879 896 78869 82339

% BENRENAESR

plant and equipment

Impairment losses on property,

7,856 2339 1,060 14,067 - = 8,916 16,406
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

—E-XRE —T—AF
2016 2015
Fr Fx
$'000 $'000
A Profit
Fr R AT RS 59 2B A Reportable segment profit before taxation 242,151 196,680
HEEEFEMNIERBHEE  Net gain on disposal of non-current
&yt assets held for sale 11,710 =
AR BE AEZMEAM  Change in fair value of other financial liabilities
SREBENANEEESD at fair value through profit or loss 66 174
AR BES ABZRHEA  Change in fair value of other financial assets
LREENARBEED) at fair value through profit or loss - 260
BEYEGERE Valuation loss on investment properties (2,110) (607)
ME - HRTRED Impairment losses on property,
RIBEEE plant and equipment (8,916) (16,406)
BTl Consolidated profit before taxation 242,901 180,101
(ili) Ht 2 B (i) Geographic information

TRINEEBAOAEEBRBIINEE
BRI A : ARG EBHIREY
¥ HMYE - MBAMEZME - UL
EHESFAANTHHAEERSR
HE(TEEIERDEE ) WFTER
R RPN RIZBHEEE
RIS E R B E S - NEBRIE
EHRBEEETHYME - EEA
RE HFEWRERBZEENE
BRETEE D - WEBRIETEIERS
BEETPHNEE  HMEHAIER
HAPEEMEEMZE S -
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The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, other property, plant and equipment, interests
in leasehold land held for own use under operating
lease and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets in the case of property, plant and equipment, and
the location of the operation to which they are allocated
in the case of goodwill.
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iii) Ho = E R (A8 ) (iii) Geographic information (continued)
REIBEFHIBRA BEFRBEE
Revenue from external customers Specified non-current assets
—E-RE —ZET—RfF —T-RE —T—AF
2016 2015 2016 2015
Fr Tt Fr Fit
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B Hong Kong
(FEfftt) (place of domicile) 2,287,620 2,069,990 361,259 319,774
AR Mainland China 140,353 174,895 63,983 64,238
2,427,973 2,244,885 425,242 384,012
4 HWARBGIRSBEH 4 Other revenue and net losses
—E-RF —T—AhF
2016 2015
Fx Tt
$'000 $'000
HAe A Other revenue
FBHA Interest income 9,231 6,684
Hitgs BT Other net losses
BB - WENERE Net loss on disposal of property,

B BB T 58 plant and equipment (5,781) (5,218)
BN (E518) Bt FaE Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain (8,067) 83
BERRBEES Electric and gas range incentives 2,974 3,592
SRS R Profit on sale of redemption gifts 997 1,177
RBRIFHAERNE Compensation paid to landlords upon

XEHHEE early termination of tenancy leases - (4,704)
Hits Others 1,460 1,411

(8,417) (3,659)
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5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—E-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
Fx T
$'000 $'000
(a) MERE (a) Finance costs
AR BE AR EMD Change in fair value of other financial assets
SREENDREEEDY at fair value through profit or loss - (260)
AR BB ABmEM Change in fair value of other financial liabilities
SREBNARLBEZS at fair value through profit or loss (66) (174)
RITEFMEEHR Interest expense on bank loans 237 504
171 70
(b) BIRHA (b) Staff costs
REHFCRINBIHZK Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 31,937 28,322
LARE R A E R LARR D Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
RERBN 2,255 144
e TERAEMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 702,096 629,754
736,288 658,220
() HpER (c) Other items
FERA (i) Cost of inventories (note) 599,782 581,642
wE Depreciation 78,657 82,128
LA &R ERER AR Amortisation of interests in leasehold land held
TR E R O for own use under operating leases 212 211
ZEEB & Auditor’s remuneration
—ZERS - Audit services 3,645 3,554
— IR — Tax services 169 169
—E iR — Other services 474 248
MENKEHEER Operating lease charges on properties
—HEHENRE - Minimum lease payments 344,219 310,009
- E8E ~ Contingent rentals 16,530 16,088
& Rental receivable
—REMEREESTH — Investment properties, less direct outgoings
225,000 (= E—F%F: of $225,000 (2015: $220,000)
220,0007T) (3,964) (4,235)
—HEfEgHHEHRE — Other operating sub-leases (3,110) (1,403)
HEBRIXEAR Cost of subsequent replacement of
BMWER cutlery and utensils 11,587 9,108

MiFE : FERAREREKA

RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Note:  The cost of inventories represents food costs.
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Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

represents:

—E—RE —ZT—hF
2016 2015
F5 Fiz
$'000 $'000

EBIE - BEFEH Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
NEEERE Provision for the year 39,581 32,571
LA EEEECGET), /T2  (Over)under-provision in respect of prior years (49) 91
39,532 32,662

EFERIE (KMiEE21(b)) Deferred tax (note 21(b))

B ZE R E £ Origination and reversal of temporary differences 2,591 3,472
42,123 36,134

—E—RNEFENEEFNGHEFRIEAN
FEMNMGTEFBEMNIA16.5% (ZF
—FRE 16.5% ) RFH

REBGEPBEAMNREREEREE
B ABAMRE_T-—R"FEPEDI
EMEHEE RZZE—RFE BN
AEEKFEALEBATFENR
FHEE - AAEEE B E A ERT DS
Ao Bt BARETEEEMBRE
o

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is calculated
at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

No provision has been made for the PRC corporate income
tax for 2016 as the Group's operations in Mainland China
recorded a loss for tax purpose. In 2015, no provision has
been made for PRC corporate income tax as the Group's
Mainland China operations have accumulated tax losses
brought forward from prior years to offset the estimated
assessable profits.
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(b) BB MG HEMIREAREFTER

RERERATHRERGE)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

AR - applicable tax rates:
—E—XE —T—REF
2016 2015
F5 T
$'000 $'000
E0pv | Profit before taxation 242,901 180,101
1%£8816.5%(=ZZF—FHF : 16.5%) Notional Hong Kong Profits Tax
MR ENEREBNEH calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 40,079 29,717
S —HIWEERLEN Effect of different tax rate of a
MEAERATRAR RN E subsidiary operating in another
tax jurisdiction (1,296) (505)
AR S H AR TR & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 4,318 3,364
BETHBARNTBETE Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,335) (1,306)
{50 FA DATE i AR e o S (58 AR Y Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax
AR B E BN TIEE losses previously not recognised - (1,129)
i AR TR R (5 AR ) TR0 TH Tax effect of unused tax losses not
EEORESE recognised 1,372 =
AERNEME R E=RNTHIATE Tax effect of other temporary
differences not recognised 34 34
MEEENBERNTIATE Tax effect of on wavier of
intra-group balances - 5,868
NEFEEEBE) TR (Over)/under-provision in respect
of prior years (49) 91
FRRHIES Actual tax expense 42,123 36,134
RIREEEERAF

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

MESMES0T - Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation is as follows:
E MR R BiRGTE  —B-RE
Eshe AEWAE MEFL ERHxf4 A g
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits  Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme 2016
fee in kind bonus payments  contributions Total
i T T Tr i i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(KiaE)
(note)
HiTES Executive Directors
BRAEE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 5,280 5233 - 18 10,701
FEE Mr Chan Chee Shing 150 2,005 3,925 255 18 6,353
REwMA Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 1,671 1,308 146 18 3,293
FHTES Non-executive Director
RE®RELE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - - - - 180
BYEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
BREFEE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - - - - 190
ZEEEL Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 - - - - 170
BRREE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 - - - - 170
FRELE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - - 240
1,420 8,956 10,466 401 54 21,297
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7 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Fre o 2 kiR BAE 1%
53He NEYHE  BERL  EROXM 3% k]
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme 2015
fee in kind bonus payments  contributions Total
7 7 7 7t 7 i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gipa)
(note)
HiTE Executive Directors
ERHAE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 5,076 3876 - 18 9,140
BRAERLE Mr Chan Chee Shing 150 1,863 2,907 - 17 4937
REw/MA Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 1,551 969 13 18 2,701
FHTES Non-executive Director
REREE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - = = = 180
BUkHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
REEEE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 = = - - 190
ZIEIER T Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 = = = = 170
BREAE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 S = = S 170
FRERE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - - 240
1,420 8,490 1,752 13 53 17,728
WEE: RO ABEROINRERELAA Note: Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share

AHERE SR TEEEREN
hEHEE SULEBRENEEIR
SRPMEE1(r)(ii) PR 51 AN SR B DA B A7) 2%
AN RZNEABRTE
WRBZIABEK - B2 HREHRE
F 25 BT BOR WP T #E s T AR 7
NEFERANE RSB ELNHA

%o

FRELEWAENFR B
BRYBERENEZEINEE - &
REZSREP[ERES ] —F
MBEFEE20 ©

RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

options granted to the Directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in note 1(r)(ii) and, in
accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity
instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under
the paragraph “Share Option Scheme” in the Report of the
Directors and note 20.
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2015: three) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other two individuals (2015: two individuals) is as follows:

ZE-XRF —E—hF

2016 2015

Fr T

$'000 $'000

HeREMME Salaries and other emoluments 3,320 2,740
LARR D BERE A - Share-based payments 138 130
BRIRETEIER R Retirement scheme contributions 36 35
3,494 2,905

M(ZF—0%F: MOMERSAL

The emoluments of the two individuals (2015: two individuals)

B EA TEREA - with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
—E-RE —T—RF

2016 2015

AE AH

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

1,000,0017c%£1,500,0007T $1,000,001 - $1,500,000 - 1
1,500,001 c%2,000,0007T $1,500,001 - $2,000,000 2 1
2 2

9 mEREF

(a) BRELXEAF
BEREABFREBAFENAQAL
i [I% 1 2= IR 3R FE {5 )& 41)200,778,0007T
(ZZ—FA% :143,967,0007T) * AKRE
1T L AR A N HE 9 20126,574,000
R(—ZF—FF :126,147,0000% )5t &
I

9 Earnings per share

(@) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $200,778,000 (2015: $143,967,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 126,574,000
shares (2015: 126,147,000 shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:
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9 Earnings per share (continued)
(a) Basic earnings per share (continued)

AR E) INAE 92K Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

—E—XE —ZT—FhF

2016 2015

BHEE R ER

Number of Number of

shares shares

T’ F &

‘000 ‘000

RUA—BHRNEREITTRR Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 126,341 125,465

TEERERN 2 Effect of share options exercised 563 732

BN E Effect of shares repurchased (330) (50)
R=A=+—HH® Weighted average number of ordinary shares

L AR nAE 39 £ at 31 March 126,574 126,147

(b) FR&EE & A (b) Diluted earnings per share

EREERNRIZBAAR L BRERS
% B B {534 F1200,778,000T( = —H
4 : 143,967,0007T) © MA K EEE @A A
PN#E 715 80127,454,00008( ZE —#
£ : 127,008,000zt &M T ¢

BB AR () -

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $200,778,000 (2015: $143,967,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 127,454,000
shares (2015: 127,008,000 shares), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

—E-RE —E—RF

2016 2015

RO EE ighar 2¢E]

Number of Number of

shares shares

T T &

‘000 ‘000
BT E SR ERBTIR Weighted average number of ordinary shares

T A N S 15 8 used in calculating basic earnings per share 126,574 126,147

AR AIRIE AR FIA Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares

REARE ST B T EHE BT under the Company'’s share option scheme

TEBEHTE for nil consideration 880 861
REstEBREER T Weighted average number of ordinary shares

LBIRINE T E used in calculating diluted earnings per share 127,454 127,008

12 8 RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(a)

10 Investment properties, other property, plant and

HELH equipment and leasehold land
(a)
ey
B8
HELH HEWE BMEE
LY HRIR  HeEE Nt BREME LR ©E
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Leasehold use under
landand  Leasehold Other Investment  operating
buildings  improvements assets  Sub-total  properties leases Total
f£ Tt Tt fx T IR R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BASMEE : Cost or valuation:
R=ZF—MENA—H At 1 April 2014 102,919 271,654 499383 873,956 57,329 8,098 939,383
B 3 3R Exchange adjustments 5 4 47 94 - - 9%
#E Additions - 41,760 62,224 103,984 - - 103,984
HeE Disposals - (46,197)  (39,500)  (85,697) - - (85,697
ENSBARAREN Reclassified to non-current
EmBEEF13) assets held for sale (Note 13) (4,004) - - (4,004)  (15,942) - (19,946)
BEER(HEE100b) Loss on revaluation (Note 10(b)) - - - - (607) - (607)
RZZ—RE=A=+—H  At31March2015 98,920 267,259 522,154 888,333 40,780 8,098 937,211
R : Representing:
AR Cost 98920 267,259 522,154 888,333 - 8,098 896,431
HE-—Z—1F Valuation - 2015 - - - - 40,780 - 40,780
98920 267,259 522,154 888,333 40,780 8,098 937,211
ZEHTE - BERHE: Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment:
R=Z—MEFNA—H At 1 April 2014 41,898 197,213 295,245 534,356 - 1,059 535415
B 3 5% Exchange adjustments 5 29 30 64 - - 64
FEME Charge for the year 4146 36857 41,125 82,128 - 211 82,339
BN EBREFEN Redlassified to non-current
EREAE(HF13) assets held for sale (Note 13) (663) = = (663) = = (663)
AERE(ME10(d) Impairment losses (Note 10(d)) - 7,026 9,380 16,406 - - 16,406
HERER Written back on disposal - (45,957)  (33,404)  (79,361) - - (79,361)
RZZ—RF=A=+—H  At31March2015 45,386 195,168 312,376 552,930 - 1,270 554,200
BREFE Net book value:
R-Z—RE=A=+—H  At31March 2015 53,534 72,091 209,778 335,403 40,780 6,828 383,011

—
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10 R BWE - HttR - @RBEMRmR

10 Investment properties, other property, plant and

HELH(E equipment and leasehold land (continued)
(a) (&) (a) (continued)
DA &M
EftEa
HETH HEWE JiEL:aiES=+
sy HRIE  HnEE PNt REWE DR k]
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Leasehold use under
landand  Leasehold Other Investment  operating
buildings  improvements assets  Sub-total  properties leases Total
Tr T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BARE Cost or valuation:
RZZ—-RENA—A At 1 April 2015 98,920 267,259 522,154 888,333 40,780 8,098 937,211
fE 5 0% Exchange adjustments (336) (1,409) (1,794) (3,539) - - (3,539)
#E Additions - 57,917 79,577 137,494 - - 137,494
HeE Disposals - (28,624) (31,419)  (60,043) - - (60,043)
EfhEEFEE100) Loss on revaluation (Note 10(b)) - - - - 2,110) - (2,110)
RZZ—"E=A=+—H  At31March 2016 98,584 295,143 568,518 962,245 38,670 8,098 1,009,013
Rk Representing:
AR Cost 98,584 295,143 568,518 962,245 - 8,098 970,343
BE-ZZ—F Valuation - 2016 - - - - 38670 - 38670
98,584 295,143 568,518 962,245 38,670 8,098 1,009,013
RitiE  BEREE: Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment:
RZZ—-RENA—A At 1 April 2015 45,386 195,168 312,376 552,930 - 1,270 554,200
fE 5 0% Exchange adjustments (312) (1,298) (1,359) (2,969) - - (2,969)
FENE Charge for the year 2,578 33,071 43,008 78,657 - 212 78,869
AERE 1) Impairment losses (Note 10(d)) - 3,021 5,895 8,916 - - 8916
R ) Written back on disposal - (28,522) (25,722) (54,244) - - (54,244)
RZF—"E=A=1+—H  At31March2016 47,652 201,440 334,198 583,290 - 1,482 584,772
BREFHE Net book value:
R-Z—"E=A=F+—H At31March 2016 50,932 93,703 234,320 378,955 38,670 6,616 424,241

RIREEBER D E

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



10 REYME Htt9E BEBENRBR
AL E)

(a) (&)
REBMERAKEENDTAT ¢

(a) (continued)

is as follows:

10 Investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land (continued)

The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the Group

—E-AF —=-—n%
2016 2015
F5 F5
$'000 $'000
A& MR SEY (RRE) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost
ERANTHREE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 71,090 71,090
EBBFEINIRERAEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 27,494 27,830
98,584 98,920
REYE(RMEE) Investment properties, at valuation
EEBFEINIRERAEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 38,670 40,780
NEEHEREBRN Interests in leasehold land held for own use
T b E R (RAA) under operating leases, at cost
ERANTHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 8,098 8,098
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

() ZAEEER

(i) Fair value hierarchy

AEERBEPRREEERELETE
BREWMENRAAEE RIZFELEE
EEAEREHENIIRDEE -
ZEMEMBEEC B AN(BEEM R
FEADE1I3[— 2 A EBEFE]
FIREN=ZEAREBERER A&
B2 MEETDEMRBENE A
ENABEREEMERE  EtME
EARBEAEREMERBENE
e

- BEEBRMLE:  RERE-ER
wmAEBBREESEERE
EHHEEEM SN AREHER
B)RTEAREIE-

- BERMLE: ERE_ERE
ANE(BIREZES — BRI BR
BWAE) URESERTAEE
BWAERFERAREE - TATE
K NMERERRTISRIEN G
AfE -

— FZEBRMEE: KRERTAE
R A NEXRFEAAEE-

IEREMEER T —RFHN_
E-RAF=-A=1+—"BE&TEMK-
EfMTERBLAEMERHT—F
WEEENEBRRERARETT
ZAEMITHEIHEARAIERXE
1% BB HREYENE R
MEHNEEHBENER - AKEE
BECRASMNHmERSHARE
TR EMRRMES

R-ZE-REN-_E-—HRE=A=
+—H  AEEMBREWEGI
FRME="AEBEERTE &
R-E—HFE=ZA=1+—HEIHAE
BEGENERDEENRENE
NEME—RRBEERTE °

RRWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis and the Group’s non-current assets held
for sale on a non-recurring basis are categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

All investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2016 and 2015 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Asset Appraisal Limited, who has staff with recognised
professional qualifications and relevant experience in the
location and category of investment properties being
revalued. The Group’s management has discussion with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at the end of the
reporting period.

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, all of the Group’s
investment properties fall into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as described above, except for the investment
properties classified as non-current assets held for sale as
at 31 March 2015 which fell into Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy as described above.



10 B ME - Ktttk - MBMEMR

HELM(E)

(b) MEN R A BEFTEE)

() 2AEEERE)
HE_Z-—AF=A=1+—HILF
B ETHREVNENDAEBEFNE
BE=-BABL -AKERLES
TREMERE=FTLTEEW
& Bl RSEREVNEFERAR
EFENFRBDEE  EHRSHX
BARBEAE EFCE2ZEER
WAl MR R (B - NERBERBR
EEAABEERZHHREREN
HBEHTEREREGRED -

(i) E=ZERAAEBEEANEH

10 Investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were
investment properties transferred out of Level 3. The
Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a
third party to dispose of certain investment properties. As
such, these investment properties were transferred to non-
current assets held for sale and measured at its fair value
by reference to the transaction price set out in the sale and
purchase agreement as at the end of the reporting period.
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

L/E3:R0I FABENHAE BE

Location of properties Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
FREI A — P BEYNEE (100%%=3%
FAssR 9518 (Hrak) (ZZ—F%F:

6)%ZE10%)

Mainland China — Commercial properties Direct comparison approach

(10)% to 3%
(2015: (6)%
to 10%)

Premium/(discount) on quality
of the buildings

NRFEABEREDENRARE
B —RERERLEZEE  EF
E2EZALMENTE  ARSE
RHNETFTEEMSEELAE -
REMEZTAESHE G4ER
BN AREEFERE -

The fair values of investment properties located
in Mainland China are determined by using direct
comparison approach with reference to the market price
of comparable properties and adjusted for building quality
and timing of the reference transactions. Higher premium
for investment properties will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

133




Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIER BT » TRIGUBESR)
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(i) E=EBRAAEETENEN ()

BLUREMENFANBHWT :

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)
The movement of these investment properties during the
year is as follows:

BB R B AT b, Rk

Hong Kong Mainland China Total

T T T

$'000 $'000 $'000

R-ZE—mFMHA—H At 1 April 2014 16,519 40,810 57,329

thEEE Valuation loss (577) (30) (607)
EFDEARAEE Reclassified to non-current

NIERBEE assets held for sale (15,942) - (15,942)

R-ZE—hFE=A=+—H At 31 March 2015 - 40,780 40,780

RZZ—HFHA—H

RZT—A"F=A=+—H

HipEEBEERM - & LR -

CRNE N NSNS ﬁ%,\ﬁ’ﬂjﬂéiﬁ\&

g5l °

EXRFEN AEEEEERES T
E%ﬂiiﬂ'ﬂi WHETELEDED
% MBS AR M ) AT U B 20 RE - IR

Empﬂﬁ%% e MR AR BR ™
é%ﬁaﬁzﬁwmoooﬁ( T—RHF:

16,406,0007T) °
BREREBEAE EFmBA(ZZT—

592,000 T #01,162,00070( — & —

il
F:MBE)ENTRESED R
il
I

£ : 456,0007T F11,285,0007T ) ° B& itk
9N BT EREYE - BERMBED

A E e B R E

A EEEN G RERYE - Bz
RENEREE ERAFTEERI15% (=

T—FF :15%)EBF o

1,622,0007T) °

RRWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

At 1 April 2015
HE/BE Valuation loss

—E-RNE=ZA=1+—08 " {EAKE
B 2B B A Bl FT SR T R (R AV M 2 BR
(B A1,522,0000c( —F — R & ¢

At 31 March 2016

Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial purchases
of cutlery and utensils.

During the year, the Group’s management identified certain
branches which continued to under-perform and estimated
the recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment
of those branches. Based on these estimates, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment was written down
by $8,916,000 (2015: $16,406,000) during the year.

The recoverable amounts of two (2015: two) of these
branches amounted to $592,000 and $1,162,000 (2015:
$456,000 and $1,285,000) based on their value in use. Apart
from the above, the recoverable amounts of the remaining
impaired property, plant and equipment were minimal.

The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the
property, plant and equipment’s value in use, determined
using a discount rate of 15% (2015: 15%,).

At 31 March 2016, the net book value of properties pledged
as security for banking guarantees granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Group amounted to $1,522,000 (2015:
$1,622,000).



10 B ME - Ktttk - MBMEMR
HELH(E)

() AEENUKLHEHEREYE - 5L
HENFRP—FE+F - FRKEH
EPTEEHAHEE - AEERETA
ERIKEHEERRERNKERE

10 Investment properties, other property, plant and

equipment and leasehold land (continued)

(f) The Group leases out investment properties under operating

leases. The leases initially run for one to ten years. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals. The Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

IFREERE T leases are receivable as follows:
—E-XE —T—FF
2016 2015
T Tt
$'000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 6,955 5,420
—FRBERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 17,826 18,745
HF% After 5 years 13,285 17,502
38,066 41,667

11 &8 11 Goodwill

— i —T-hF
2016 2015
T Tt
$'000 $'000
RARMA—BR=A=+—H) Cost, at 1 April and 31 March 1,001 1,001

BEERENReELETHRERR
AREBREEHRNEED B R
TRIPRINRECELETIT :

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU") identified according to the location of operation and
business segment as follows:

—E-AF —Th%F

2016 2015

Fx Fit

$'000 $'000

BREER—FRRMH Restaurant operation — Mainland China 1,001 1,001

ReEHERNARESRIREER
EBEFE - FEEARREEECRE
WAFHBRENRSREM - BB
TEMENRESRER TAN G X
{EHEET - MRERATBBZRSELE
TR ERBHRPFIEEREE -

—

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates
stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates.
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1 (%)
BEMENREE D BT EH

11 Goodwill (continued)
Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

(4&) (continued)
AEERAEENEERR Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:
—g-xE —=-5f
2016 2015
ES B Gross margin 14% 14%
R & Growth rate 3% 3%
IR = Discount rate 15% 15%

EEERBEEENETSEREER
BERIEK o FrER e s 1918 & & 8
TTEREMETON — B AR A R
BERARRRBBARESELETHEER
BRE BRI IR K -

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and their expectation for market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

12 At & REE 12 Other financial assets

—E-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000

FRBEREE Non-current financial assets

FAERIPERES Held-to-maturity debt security
—JEMEERE — Unlisted but quoted 8,405 8,835

FREBEEMEE Current financial assets

EHINES L Forward foreign exchange contract - 89
8,405 8,924

A A R B B0 B3 5 i 1 E
- R RMERT  FHR=F—=
F+—A+=AE=2—N\F+—A+
SAAMEF  BEFIEI6%E -

RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The debt security was issued by a financial institution in
Mainland China, denominated in Renminbi, bore interest at a
rate of 3.6% per annum and had a term of five years from 13
November 2013 to 13 November 2018.



13 BFEFENERDEE
EBE_T—RAF=-A=+—HL#HF
B AREFERF=-HFIVYTESHH
HEETHE T MMBEYARIKED
¥ . Fi8)%$%/530,993,0007T © 2 &Y
¥R _E—RF=-A=1+—RHIAEAE
HENERDEE - HBERFERZZT
—AFOA=+HRERK ¥EHE=-ZT
—RNEZAZt+—BHULEFERRBK
Z57%%811,710,0007T ° £ &Y ¥ 1ER
B - Hb FN 3R SR W) (i % #241,000T 2
BARBER -

13 Non-current assets held for sale
During the year ended 31 March 2015, a sale and purchase
agreement was entered into with a third party to dispose of
certain properties with net proceeds of $30,993,000. The
transaction was completed on 30 April 2015 and a net gain
on disposal of $11,710,000 was recognised during the year
ended 31 March 2016. Land and buildings revaluation reserve
related to the disposed properties amounting to $241,000
were transferred to retained profits.

14 & 14 Inventories
(a) FEMBARAXARNEE L : (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise:
e —T-A%
2016 2015
F5 Fi
$'000 $'000
Bin Rk Food and beverages 33,652 35,163
JEREm © BEME R Consumables, packaging materials
HAbFEIE and other sundry items 3,259 3,354
36,911 38,517

(b) RBAXENFEEHEATAT

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense is as follows:

—EB-RE —E—hF

2016 2015

T Tt

$'000 $'000

BEETENERASRE Carrying amount of inventories sold 599,274 581,175
FEMR Write down of inventories 508 467
599,782 581,642
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15 FEM AR =X 0 H fth FE U 7% 15 Trade and other receivables

S —T-A%

2016 2015

T T

$'000 $'000

7 Ly B R L A U R Trade and other debtors 9,634 8,814
ENHESTMAREELRS Rental and utility deposits paid 40,092 31,556
AR Prepayments 20,980 20,003
70,706 60,373

% T & #3,867,0000L( — T —HF:
3,920,00070) A EEEEIN KK
EFTA R - e BRI
R—FERRE S EREL L -

All debtors, deposits and prepayments of the Group, apart
from certain utility deposits totalling $3,867,000 (2015:
$3,920,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised as

an expense within one year.

(a) BREQ DT (a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors
(net of allowance for doubtful debts), based on the invoice
date, with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the

TA 0 25 B3R A0 R UK R R L At B Wi sk e
BREEVES(EHGRREER) - HiZ
LEAHFENREONTOT

reporting period:

—E-XEF —ZT—0F

2016 2015

Fr FT

$'000 $'000

—=Z=-rF 1 to 30 days 2,452 1,831
=+—&h+H 31 to 90 days 466 327
2,918 2,158

AEEHEBEETHHERXSETEMUR
TREHE - ARETHR TEREBNID
BENF=TEELTRANEEDY -

1 38 RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group's sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 75 days to certain
customers to which the Group provides catering services.



15 BURRRINFE Mt B R (=)

(b) FERLE R &Y R R

FEAE R AR A& Hu AR 2R (B HO FE MR R AR
AT

15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

—E-RE “T—RF

2016 2015

i F7

$'000 $'000

e EA R (E Neither past due nor impaired 2,722 1,809
B —1E A Less than 1 month past due 188 159
wmE—=={AA 1 to 3 months past due 8 190
196 349

2,918 2,158

S 8 9 5 4 2 0 O R B 2K R 5 58
R R EES -

B8 BB JR R E A FE U R 5K B - = ok i
AEBEERHEBERN —RBULE
F-BEERR RENEER AR
EEERYEBE - MABERIDKR
AR E - pTAEARL I EHRRE
i o ARBEYERELERMHFE
o e

16 RITERMR S

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

16 Bank deposits and cash

—E—XE —E—hF

2016 2015

T T

$'000 $'000

RITER Deposits with banks 327,728 233,507

SRITFERFIR S Cash at bank and on hand 177,733 185,515
FeaREnEBERMTHRE Cash and cash equivalents in the

MRS EEY consolidated cash flow statement 505,461 419,022

=1 A %32 E HRRITTER Time bank deposits over three months 43,146 =

548,607 419,022
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17 FEfTRRRR PR ft BB (% 17 Trade and other payables
—g-AF —T—AF
2016 2015
T T
$000 $'000
R AMETER Creditors and accrued expenses 339,897 267,470
TEURFRIB AR LU A Receipts in advance and deferred income 23,906 23,188
P2 B T A (FirE24(a)iii) Derivative financial instruments (note 24(a)(iii)) 12 78
BRHSES Rental deposits received 45 236
363,860 290,972

BRTHETRBFKEMELE KA
8,457,0007c( —F — A 4 : 7,412,000
TC)SN - PR At A RR SR L A A
RIBHR R —FREBXERBEA

AR —FREE -

TSR & B R B FE 1 AR KA L At FE A5 5K R
BREEMER  EREZAHAENR

All of the other trade and other payables, apart from certain
receipts in advance and deferred income totalling $8,457,000
(2015: $7,412,000) are expected to be settled or recognised
as income or are repayable within one year.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of

BT : the end of the reporting period:
. —T-hF
2016 2015
Fr T
$'000 $'000
=Z=-F 1 to 30 days 99,335 86,944
=+—&Fh+H 31 to 90 days 2,717 454
h+—&E—BNA+H 91 to 180 days 2,740 61
—BNt—Z=BHA~THH 181 to 365 days 71 104
—FAE Over one year 668 668
105,531 88,231

1 40 RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RZE—ARZE—RE=RA=+—

B EERRITEROERRNT ¢

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, the unsecured bank loans were
repayable as follows:

—ZT-hF
2015
T
$'000
—ERNEHEENTHERD Current portion of term loans due

BUERER 5 for repayment within one year 4,387

—FRIPEENTHER | Term loans due for repayment after one year:
——FREMERN — After 1 year but within 2 years 3,053
—MERERFA — After 2 years but within 5 years 3,583
6,636
RITE AR Total bank loans 11,023

AEENMARITERBFAKREET
BRAMBHARKRL RO RDE - TT1R1E
EoHFROFANESREBRI Y/
fERLHR - MAKREERRY 28
AORERARENRER AKEEE

HERALETRERY -

AEBERRBE SRR BHNMH
F24a)i) e RZE—REF=ZRA=+—
B BEEREMCHAEERENR

W—T—hF:8\)-

AEBZRBEB(CRHMEARE S EE
BIYEIRE + BREBEBBERBEEHIN
EFERANES - RuabE BT
E([RFELFTE]) - aFBERFTEIR —
ERERRARE - ABIMNZEA
B BIERESE EENEES
BIRREEMBEABNS%AEES T
EEHER  BEEANMEBABLRA
30,0007t( —Z — F 4 : 30,0007C ) °

HREARRARESE P -

AEBERBAIMNEEREBHNEBRIE
BB EER T BB HEE #AE K

RIRGTBINREE

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group’s statement of
financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants.

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 24(a)(ii). As at 31 March 2016, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached
(2015: None).

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of $30,000 (2015: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.
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RRWEEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

As at 31 March 2016, the Company maintained two share
option schemes, namely the 2002 Option Scheme (the “2002
Option Scheme”) and the 2011 Option Scheme (the “2011
Option Scheme”). As a result of the termination of the 2002
Option Scheme on 7 September 2011, no further options may
be granted under the 2002 Option Scheme but the options
that have been granted and remained outstanding as of that
date under such scheme remain effective.

Under the 2011 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any employee, Director (including
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director) or officer of any member of the Group or any related
trust or company to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii)
the nominal value of a share. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before an
option can be exercised under the share option scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.
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20 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
delivery of shares:

=1
B AR R B AR
RTH BE BEAX P9 E K HAR
Average
Number of contractual
Date granted options  Vesting conditions life of options
KT ESBAGE -
Options granted to Directors:
- “ZETNAFIANAE 800,000 FAIR=ZE—ZFMA—HE 7.0
—T—R"E=ZA=1+—H
HEAD TR
— on 8 April 2009 800,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years
during the period from
1 April 2010 to
31 March 2016
- —ZE-ZTF=f—H 80,000 AIR=ZT——F—A—HZE 6.8
—ERF+-A=t+—H
HEA D BT
— on 1 March 2010 80,000  Exercisable in five tranches 6.8 years
during the period from
1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016
- “ZE-RFNA-+H 1,100,000 AIR=Z—XREMA—HZE 7.0
T —F#=A=+—H
HEAD TR
— on 20 April 2015 1,100,000  Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years
during the period from
1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022
R T EEMERE :
Options granted to employees:
- “ZEThFIANAE 42,000 AR=ZE-—ZTFEA-—HZE 7.0
—ZT—R"E=A=1+—H
HEAD TR
— on 8 April 2009 42,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years

during the period from
1 April 2010 to
31 March 2016
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20 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
delivery of shares: (continued)

IR A IR AE
RFH BE BEAER P9 E K HIR
Average
Number of contractual
Date granted options  Vesting conditions life of options
- —ZE——F-RA+RH 20,000 AIR=ZT——F-A+BZE 6.0
ZT—t+tH-A+HhHB
BN At TE
— on 16 February 2011 20,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.0 years
during the period from
16 February 2012 to
15 February 2017
- ZE——FHRANA 320,000 AR=-_EZE——FHANBZE 7.5
—ZE-NFRANH
HEA S AT
— on9May2011 320,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.5 years
during the period from
9 May 2012 to
8 May 2019
- ZET—RFMA=+H 5,030,000 AR=Z—R"FHA—RAZE 7.0
T F=R=+—H
HEA D BT
— on 20 April 2015 5,030,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years
during the period from
1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022
- ZZ—HFt+AZH 60,000 FAR-Z—RF+A—HZE 7.0%F
—EC_FAHA=+H
HERD T
— on 2 October 2015 60,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years

during the period from
1 October 2016 to
30 September 2022

RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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options are as follows:

20 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share

—E-RE¥ —E-hF
2016 2015

MAEF B E I B
TEE %A 11158 ]

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
FENRITE Outstanding at the beginning of the year $7.63 1,262,000 $7.47 2,240,000
FABET Granted during the year $20.71 6,190,000 $16.28 100,000
FREITE Exercised during the year $7.15 (1,102,000) $7.26 (978,000)
FRND LR Lapsed during the year $20.70 (160,000) $16.28 (100,000)
FRRITE Outstanding at the end of the year $20.46 6,190,000 $7.63 1,262,000
ERATE Exercisable at the end of the year - - $6.42 922,000

AEENBITHEBERENTTEBA N
BEABREARE23NMT(ZE—RF:
16.447T) °

R-ZE—RE=ZA=+—HBRTEER
R IMEFHTEEA20.46L(ZF —
AE :7.637L)  MMEFHFGRE L

$16.44).

HRAB5.93F(ZZT—HF : 1.729F) ° years).

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was $23.11 (2015:

The options outstanding at 31 March 2016 had a weighted
average exercise price of $20.46 (2015: $7.63) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 5.93 years (2015: 1.72
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20 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a trinomial lattice
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the trinomial lattice model.

R=-B—AHF R=EZB—HF

mMA=+H +H=H

BT HERRE RTHERE

Options Options

granted at granted at

BRENAREERERR Fair value of share options and assumptions 20 April 2015 2 October 2015

RETEEMNAREE Fair value at measurement date $1.28 $1.43

(B Share price $20.70 $22.20

1TEE Exercise price $20.70 $22.20

TEEPR IR Expected volatility 10.39% - 17.20% 12.96% - 17.33%
BERS M HAMR (A = 1A =\ B fE A8 AY Option life (expressed as weighted average
FR &Y hnfE 9 BRRR 51| 7R ) life used in the modelling under trinomial

lattice model) 7.00 “Fyears 7.00 Fyears

TEEARR B & Expected dividend yield 3.24% 3.60%

e Risk-free interest rate
(FRBINER S ZE1E) (based on Exchange Fund Notes) 0.11% -0.94%  0.07% -0.93%

BREERERBHEHET - ARR#E
AEMESRERETENAAEE
B WREEBERGN - BT ERE
BRF 30 B 75 (T B2 T 355 75 R O 18R 1°F

RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were
no market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial
position
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents:

—E—-RE —T—hEF
2016 2015
Frx Fit
$'000 $'000
KEEEBFNEHEE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 39,581 32,571
EREHAEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (24,406) (20,746)
15,175 11,825
AR RS T sk Balance of Profits Tax provision relating
to prior years 927 927
16,102 12,752
K&k Representing:
AT B A EARR 3R Current tax recoverable - (72)
JES AR HAT 18 Current tax payable 16,102 12,824
16,102 12,752
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial
position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015

EEEBHNT are as follows:
REME MR EL AR
=l HELTE RARM e k)
Depreciation
allowances Future
Revaluation in excess benefit
of investment of related of tax
properties depreciation losses Total
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RE TS EWELEHE : Deferred tax arising from:
RZZE—NENA—H At 1 April 2014 6,301 8,683 (1,957) 13,027
EHABHRFPGIAN)/ (Credited)/charged to the
51132 (FidE6(a)) consolidated statement
of profit or loss (note 6(a)) (15) 1,955 1,532 3,472
[ =R Exchange difference = = ) )
RZZE-—AF=A=+—H At 31 March 2015 6,286 10,638 (@27) 16,497
W-Z—HEMA—B At 1 April 2015 6,286 10,638 (427) 16,497
R aBERFGIA)/ (Credited)/charged to the
53 (P EE6(a)) consolidated statement of
profit or loss (note 6(a)) (970) 3,440 121 2,591
W=ZZ—~E=A=+—B  At31March2016 5,316 14,078 (306) 19,088
ZE-RE —T—hfF
2016 2015
Frx T
$'000 $'000
AR & AR R iR E Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
BIRETIAE B FE consolidated statement of financial position (306) (427)
EEE B RIERR Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
RIETIIE A E S consolidated statement of financial position 19,394 16,924
19,088 16,497
RIEEEERA R
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RNEE M AR F R FITEE 863,057,000
TT(ZZT—FR%F : 54,741,0007T) & T
B B 2~ 7] &9 B] H1 Rk & By = 23,558,000
T(—ZF—HF : 3,350,00070 ) FER
AHELRIEBEEE AAAEEER
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H ERERBTAAIEEEBEAHKE
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial

(0)

position (continued)

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
the cumulative tax losses of $63,057,000 (2015: $54,741,000)
and deductible temporary differences of $3,558,000 (2015:
$3,350,000) of certain subsidiaries as management of the
Group considers that it is not probable as at 31 March 2016
that future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction.
Other than tax losses of subsidiaries in Mainland China of
$25,906,000 (2015: $17,590,000) which have an expiry
period of 5 years under the PRC tax legislation, these tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

22 ¥ 22 Provisions
—E—XRF —T—RF
2016 2015
Frx Tt
$'000 $'000
RIRH &% Provision for long service payments 17,200 10,700
R ESZTRIE B AR Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises 40,310 37,728
57,510 48,428
B BIEEDRBAE IARIE  Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” (13,320) (11,664)
44,190 36,764

(a) REIRBEERE

(@) Provision for long service payments

— i —T-hF

2016 2015

T T

$'000 $'000

RIEA—H At 1 April 10,700 10,940
B EHRRERINERS Additional provisions made 7,699 839
BB EE Provision utilised (1,199) (1,079)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 17,200 10,700
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22 Provisions (continued)
(a) Provision for long service payments (continued)

REBFECRBEN)  AEEARET
BRATEAKRBRE&DERLFNESR
BREAREXN —E3E - BHEE
SBYZEFRENTREFERFEME
I &R ERIFA K BRI RE MR
BAKEHRNELD - AREYES L
AT EMBREMEE

(b) HESFTREEA AR

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlement accrued
under the Group’s retirement schemes that are attributable
to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund the above.

(b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises

—E-XRE —ZF—hF

2016 2015

Fr T

$'000 $'000

REA—H At 1 April 37,728 29,137
B EHER I NEE Additional provisions made 4,463 11,749
EEIIEER Provision utilised (1,881) (3,158)
R=A=+—8 At 31 March 40,310 37,728

RIFEZXTAITTHHERZENGER - K
S BANERAEE 3 E IR
EHESH - ARKAH NS BRI -
Hit - AEES AR EENEENX
RIREREMFHEL T %4 -

RREEEERAE
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150

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
landlords, the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental
premises at the Group's cost upon expiry of the relevant rental
agreements. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate
of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred.



23 BEHEM

(a) AEBZEAERNEEAKE D WH
HHREROYE  BIRER2RE
BEMGFA DR -

23 Capital and reserves

(a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 92 and 93.

(b) B&B (b) Dividends
() BRAFEENEKLFEZREL (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
HRE attributable to the year
—E—XE —E—RF
2016 2015
Fr T
$'000 $'000
5k &SN R HARY B A% 31.01ll  Interim dividend declared and paid of 31.0
(ZZF—5%F : 28.01L) cents (2015: 28.0 cents) per share 39,312 35,370
B8k &SRR A B RS B =R Special interim dividend declared and paid of
9.0(l(=ZZE—H%F : &) 9.0 cents (2015: Nil) per share 11,413 =
RIRE ISR R DIRAREAAL S Final dividend proposed after the end of the
FHE55.0l(=Z—A%4 : 52.01ll) reporting period of 55.0 cents (2015: 52.0
cents) per share 69,710 65,697
RIREHIERIBEEDIRERIZRE]  Special final dividend proposed after the end
B% B EAA5.01L(Z = —F4F : #&) of the reporting period of 45.0 cents (2015:
Nil) per share 57,035 -
177,470 101,067

RBEMERBER D KR R
R B R BB 1) R 7 3 o B 48 R B
ERRAaE-

The final and special final dividends proposed after the
end of the reporting period have not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.
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23 BEMERZ) 23 Capital and reserves (continued)

(b) BB (&) (b) Dividends (continued)

(i) BRE—FEFE  WREFEE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
BERS(THIENER L AR R attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
IR E. paid during the year

—E-RE —T—RF
2016 2015
Frx Tt
$'000 $'000
BAL—BHEE » WHAKFEE  Final dividend in respect of the previous
BHLE R R RARE ZR financial year, approved and paid during the
52.0{l(=ZZ—FF : 39.01l) year, of 52.0 cents (2015: 39.0 cents) per
share 66,044 49,295
mEE-_E—RF=A=+—HI In respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31
FEAHARENS E_T—HE March 2015, there is a difference of $347,000 (year
BB &SR & b i 5E M ok HR AR B B A ended 31 March 2014: $364,000) between the final
EERERSNSHE BN ESE dividend disclosed in the 2015 annual financial statements
347,000 (BE-—S—WE=8= and amount approved and paid during the year which
+—BILEE : 364,0007T) + 23 represents dividends attributable to (i) shares repurchased
AT EREROD B D FENN and (ii) new shares issued upon the exercise of share
()E, [0 B8 A% 19 R (ii) 77 {55 Bt P o i 2 options, before the closing date of the Register of
BTHREE AEER S - Members.
(c) P&z (c) Share capital
—B-AE —
2016 2015
BRDBE 2l ienE¢E! G|
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Fi Fr T T
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
EERE Authorised:
SREEITE B Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
ERTRBERE : Issued and fully paid:
REOA—A At 1 April 126,341 126,341 125,465 125,465
RIEBEAEST B85 1TA)  Shares issued under share
B dn (BREEG)) option scheme (note (7)) 1,102 1,102 978 978
(el s (BRTREC)) Shares repurchased (note (ii)) (698) (698) (102) (102)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 126,745 126,745 126,341 126,341

1 52 RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(0 BA(&)
BisE -

(i)

BB BB ITHRND

AFEENERERFEARELAQARLE
BAYA 1,102,000 ( =T — H F -
978,000/%) + (B3 /57,876,00070( =&
—H4 :7,100,0007T) © EH1,102,000
T(=—ZF — 7 4 : 978,000 ) :0 A &
A e~ 86,774,000( —FE —F
F :6,122,00070 ) AJGE ARBR D & B AR ©
1,547,0000( — Z — A 4F : 1,836,000
TT) B AR 100G TS 9 & 5T BUE B
BAREBEE AR S EDR o

BAXG B
RARRBE_ZT—RF=ZHA=1+—H

1 5F A B8 22 P [0 i 7R & B £ B0 FF 1B 1R
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23 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes:

0

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
1,102,000 (2015: 978,000) ordinary shares in the Company at
a consideration of $7,876,000 (2015: $7,100,000), of which
$1,102,000 (2015: $978,000) was credited to share capital and
the balance of $6,774,000 (2015: $6,122,000) was credited to
the share premium account. $1,547,000 (2015: $1,836,000) has
been transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note

1(r)(ii).

Purchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company
repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

= 8 iR 19 R AT SR
#®E FriS#8E BSE RIEE
Number of Highest Lowest
shares Aggregate price paid price paid
%,/ BH Month/year repurchased price paid per share per share
T
$'000
e e July 2015 204,000 4,550 $22.60 $21.90
e A August 2015 120,000 2,597 $22.00 $20.50
—T—hHFNA September 2015 72,000 1,491 $20.75 $20.65
—E—RF+=A December 2015 51,000 1,220 $23.95 $23.85
—T—RF—A January 2016 232,500 5,357 $23.90 $22.25
—E—XRF—A February 2016 18,000 403 $22.45 $22.30
697,500 15,618

LR ERNMELEEHE  AR2FHE
BITRAEHEEREZEREBERMDH
AE EEBRKROAAXND B AH
14,920,0007T & 44,0007 &) 5# B R X 5
RABEARRD R RAEENKRND S ER
FHIE ©

The above repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued
share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of these shares accordingly. The premium and transaction costs
paid on the repurchase of shares of $14,920,000 and $44,000
respectively were charged to the Company’s and the Group’s
share premium accounts.
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23 Capital and reserves (continued)
(c) Share capital (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iiiy Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of

TE(ERR the reporting period

—E-RE —E—hF

2016 2015

[Sail=! 1T AR 1TE(E BRERE fERAREE B

Exercisable Exercise Number of Number of

Date granted period price options options

—ETNFMANR —T-TFMNA—RAZE $6.26 - 842,000
—T-RF=A=1+—H
8 April 2009 1 April 2010 to
31 March 2016

—T-TF=R—H —T—%F—f[—H% $8.08 - 80,000
—E—R"Ft+=-A=1+—H
1 March 2010 1 January 2011 to
31 December 2016

—ZT——®=-A+,H —T——F-A+~HE $10.90 - 20,000
—E—+F-A+HH
16 February 2011 16 February 2012 to
15 February 2017

—T——FRANA —T——FRANAE $10.88 160,000 320,000
—E-hAFRANE
9 May 2011 9 May 2012 to
8 May 2019

—ET-RFEMNA-—+H —T—RNFMNA—HZE $20.70 5,970,000 -
—T-—f%=A=1+—H
20 April 2015 1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022

—T-RFTAZA T AF+A-HE $22.20 60,000 -
T _FNAA=+H
2 October 2015 1 October 2016 to
30 September 2022

6,190,000 1,262,000

BNBEERERTEFAEATRBEAQT
TR E BB R - BRE LB RED
#E— S AR B ®REME20

RIREEBER D E

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. Further details of these options are set out
in note 20 to the financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s Bye-laws and
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of Mainland China operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 1(v).

(ii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former holding
company of the Group became a subsidiary of the
Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company has been
credited to the Company’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus of
the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

(iv) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 1(r)(ii).



Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIER BT » TRIGUBESR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
fair value change arising on the revaluation of property
held for own use upon transfer to investment property.

(vi) Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $331,050,000 (2015: $297,132,000). After
the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed
a final dividend of 55.0 cents (2015: 52.0 cents) per
share and special final dividend of 45.0 cents (2015: Nil)
amounting to $126,745,000 (2015: $65,697,000). The
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period.

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

As 31 March 2016, the Group has total borrowings amounting
to $6,636,000 (2015: $11,023,000). The gearing ratio,
representing the ratio of total borrowings to the total share
capital and reserves of the Group was 1.0% (2015: 1.8%)
at 31 March 2016. The Group had time deposits and cash
balances as at 31 March 2016 amounting to $548,607,000
(2015: $419,022,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(i) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, bank deposits and cash at bank and
other financial assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the expenses to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that catering services are
provided to customers with a sound credit history. Sales
to retail customers are made in cash, Octopus or via major
credit cards. At the end of the reporting period, there
were no significant concentrations of credit risk.

The Group’s time deposits and cash balances and
other financial assets are normally placed with financial
institutions of high credit quality.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Company
in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 26, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 15.
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(ii) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company'’s board of directors when the borrowings
exceed certain pre-determined levels of authority.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirement and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative and derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.

For term loans subject to repayment on demand clauses
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the contractual
repayment schedule and, separately, the impact to the
timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
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(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

ZE-RF
2016
gk —FHE WESL
FESH REAH —FR EMER BRER
Total More than ~ More than
contractual 1yearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted Within less than less than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years
r r T T Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
RITER Bank loans 6,636 6,787 3,139 1,767 1,881
B GikRren Rental deposits received 2,053 2,053 46 - 2,007
RS2 Creditors and accrued expenses 339,897 339,897 339,897 - -
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 12 12 12 - -
348,598 348,749 343,094 1,767 3,888
—E-RE
2015
BEOES
FHERE —EpE REL L
FEEE MERE —ER BREFR BRER
Total More than More than
contractual Tyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Within less than less than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years
Tr T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FITER Bank loans 11,023 11,335 4,548 3,139 3,648
Bl ES Rental deposits received 2,001 2,001 236 24 1,741
ERERAESER Creditors and accrued expenses 267,470 267,470 267,470 = =
fiEemIA Derivative financial instruments 78 82 70 12 -
280,572 280,888 272,324 3,175 5,389
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(iii) Interest rate risk
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The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from bank
loans. All bank loans bear interest at market rates.

For the bank loans, when appropriate and at times of
interest rate uncertainty or volatility, interest rate swaps
may be used to assist in the Group’s management of
interest rate exposure. The effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2016 is 1.8% (2015:
1.8%) per annum.

Interest rate swaps, denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
have been entered into to achieve an appropriate mix
of fixed and floating rate exposure consistent with the
Group’s policy. At 31 March 2016, the Group had an
interest rate swap with a notional contract amount of
$1,333,000 (2015: $4,000,000) to fix the interest rate of a
bank borrowing so as to reduce the impact of interest rate
fluctuation.

The swap matures over the next half years, matching the
maturity of the related loan (see note 18) and has fixed
swap rate of 2.74%. The net fair value of swap entered
into by the Group at 31 March 2016 was $12,000 (2015:
$78,000). This amount is recognised as derivative financial
instruments and is included within “Trade and other
payables” (note 17).

At 31 March 2016, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately $26,000 (2015: $32,000).
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(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and applied to remeasure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expenses or income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2015.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through cash at bank and other financial assets that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars and Renminbi. The Group ensures that the net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short term imbalances.

The following tables detail the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to foreign currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period. Differences resulting from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency are excluded.
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(iv) B E bz (&) (iv) Currency risk (continued)

(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ShEE LR RERE (LB HEIR)

Exposure to foreign currencies

—E-RE —T—RF
2016 2015

ES ARME E7T AR

United United

States States
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Renminbi
Fr Fr T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HieRERE Other financial assets - 8,405 = 8,924
RITEARFR S Bank deposits and cash 15,027 174,155 24,441 184,726
15,027 182,560 24,441 193,650

1 62 RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iv) Currency risk (continued)

The following table indicates the change in the Group's
profit after taxation and retained profits that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, as Hong Kong dollar is pegged
to United States dollar, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong
Kong dollar exchange rate

—E-REF —T—RF
2016 2015

MRBLERFIR BRELRR A K
EzEA S REEAE  ERLEAS REBEFE
(&) n/ CRA) (%) /R
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) profit after (decrease) in profit after
in foreign taxation and in foreign  taxation and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
Fr T
$'000 $'000
AR 5.0% 9,128 5.0% 9,683
Renminbi (5.0)% (9,128) (5.0)% (9,683)
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24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v) Fair values

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

—B-RF e
2016 2015
E-EBR FZER
DRERE ARfEE
DREE iR RREE =
Level 2 Level 2
fair value fair value
Fair value  measurement Fair value measurement
Fr Fr T T
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
REEEENEBN Recurring fair value
DREE measurements
BE Assets
—REINER L — Forward foreign exchange contract - - 89 89
B& Liabilities
— TSI A — Derivative financial instruments (12) (12) (78) (78)

(12) (12) 11 1

1 64 RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(v) Fair values (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, there
were no transfers between financial instruments in
different levels. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation technigues and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of structured note and forward foreign
exchange contract are derived from the fair value of the
underlying instrument by using discounted cash flow
analysis taking the credit risk and the exchange rate of
USD against RMB into account.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
determined by discounting the future cash flows of the
contracts at the current market interest rates. The Group
uses the interest rate curve of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR") as of 31 March 2016 plus an
adequate constant credit spread to discount derivative
financial instruments. The interest rates used are 0.6% —
0.7% (2015: 0.4% — 0.7 %).

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2016 and
2015.
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24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(b) Categories of financial instruments

166

—E-RE —T—RF
2016 2015
Fr T
$'000 $'000
SRMEE Financial assets
Hiv & E Other financial assets
—EFEZIHEE — Held-to-maturity investment 8,405 8,835
—BARBEF ABRN — Financial instrument at fair value through
SRTHE profit or loss - 89
BRI R MR Loans and receivables
—EER RS — Debtors and deposits 101,396 91,840
—IRITERME L — Bank deposits and cash 548,607 419,022
_____ 650,003 510,862
658,408 519,786
sRas Financial liabilities
BAREEFABEN Financial instruments at fair value
SRTHE through profit or loss 12 78
JR SHR AN SR AN At amortised cost or cost
— DAL RS — Rental deposits received 2,052 2,001
— ENBRFRAEEL B — Creditors and accrued expenses 339,897 267,470
—RITER — Bank loans 6,636 11,023
----- 348,585 280,494
348,597 280,572

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

25 ik 25 Commitments
(a) RZE—XRE=ZA=+—BKERNMX (a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2016 not
REB SRR NIR B E ) & AR E LD provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
T
e —T—A%
2016 2015
T Tt
$'000 $'000
B2ET4 Contracted for 3,789 12,910
DI REBEARETH Authorised but not contracted for 18,466 12,490
22,255 25,400
KIEEBEBRAA
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At 31 March 2016, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
are payable as follows:

—E—RF
2015

T

$'000

279,412

605

617,524

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
nine years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased to
reflect market rentals. The contingent rent payments are
determined based on 10% to 20% (2015: 10% to 20%) of
the revenue over the base rents and are excluded from the
information disclosed above.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be
received under non-cancellable subleases at 31 March 2016
were $4,685,000 (2015: $4,456,000).

At 31 March 2016, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn
down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantee,
being $79,139,000 (2015: $71,934,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably
measured and there is no transaction price.
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In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid
to the Company’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from New Champion International Limited (“New
Champion”). New Champion is a company wholly beneficially
owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and his family members.
In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of New
Champion. Rental expenses incurred during the year
amounted to $2,265,000 (2015: $1,680,000).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from Hibony Limited (“Hibony"”). Hibony is a
company beneficially owned by Pengto International Limited
(a company beneficially owned by a trust of which Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object). In addition, Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of Hibony. Rental expenses incurred
during the year amounted to $3,036,000 (2015: $2,539,000).

The related party transaction in respect of (c) above constitutes
a continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are provided in the section “continuing
connected transaction” of the Report of the Directors.

The related party transaction in respect of (b) above constitutes
a continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, however it is exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(a) ARIEEIBIRAEK (a) Company-level statement of financial position
—E-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
Bt s Frx T
Note $'000 $'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
TR B A F R g Interests in subsidiaries 390,261 391,279
BRIER I E B Deferred tax assets 306 427
390,567 391,706
RENEE Current assets
7 UK AR N L At R LR Trade and other receivables 108,723 87,712
RITEARFMER S Bank deposits and cash 452 428
109,175 88,140
REAE Current liabilities
S BR TN EL A FE A K Trade and other payables 36,998 45,451
REEETFE Net current assets 72,177 42,689
BEERE NET ASSETS 462,744 434,395
EARNHE Capital and reserves 28(b)
&N Share capital 126,745 126,341
f#E Reserves 335,999 308,054
R TOTAL EQUITY 462,744 434,395
ErefN - NEA-tThB%E Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
WEFAf 2 o on 29 June 2016.
ZHE FR AR
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Chan Chee Shing
HITFE TTEABE,
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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28 Company-level financial information (continued)
(b) Company-level statement of changes in equity

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the reporting period are set out below:

BRA  RODEE  #AAB%  EARE bt o
Share Share  Contributed Capital Retained
capital premium surplus reserve profits Total
i T Fr T Tr T Tr
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R-ZE-WEWA—A At 1 April 2014 125,465 2,678 28,182 3,666 253,040 413,031
LEEEHENRE Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)i) - - - - (49,295) (49,295)
AEEEERAKE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)() - - - - (35,370) (35,370)
RELREM Profit for the year = = - - 100575 100,575
IR R 81547 Shares issued under share
HIR R option scheme 23(c)i) 978 6,122 - - - 7,100
BTER Issue expenses - (51) _ _ _ (51)
WEREERURGD A Equity-settled share-based
ERNR S transactions 23()i) = 1,836 = (1,692) = 144
BIEA S KD Repurchase of own shares
-BfEE — par value paid 23(0)(i) (102) = = = = (102)
—BF&ER ~ premium and transaction
REFHA costs paid 23(c)(i) = (1,637) = = - (1,637)
RZZE-RE=A=1+—H At31March2015 126,341 8,948 28,182 1,974 268,950 434,395
RZZE-—RFWA—H At 1 April 2015 126,341 8,948 28,182 1,974 268,950 434,395
LEEEHERNRE Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)i) - - - - (66,044) (66,044)
AEEESRAKE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)() - - - - (50,725) (50,725)
KERRH Profit for the year - - - - 150,687 150,687
IR R 81547 Shares issued under share
HIRR{D option scheme 23(0)i) 1,102 6,774 - - - 7,876
BTER Issue expenses - (38) _ _ _ (38)
MEREE ARG A Equity-settled share-based
EfNR S transactions 23(0)(i) - 1,547 - 708 - 2,255
BIEA S KD Repurchase of own shares
-BfEE — par value paid 23(0)(i) (698) - - - - (698)
—BH&ER ~ premium and transaction
REFA costs paid 23(0)(i) - (14,964) - - - (14,964)
WZZE—"E=A=1+—H At31March2016 126,745 2,267 28,182 2,682 302,868 462,744

RIREEBER D E

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RENRFARER 29 Non-adjusting event after the reporting period
EENMERERERZ D IRARARE After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed
FEFRIRERE - BEAFBEHINM T a final dividend and a special final dividend. Further details are
23(b) ° disclosed in note 23(b).
CHEGERKRERE_F—NEFE=ZH 30 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
E+—HILLFEEEWEERT « HEQ interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
MREAREFERNE year ended 31 March 2016

HEAMBRETIEL - FESTMA Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
EERMEBBTEHE_T—"F=A= HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
T—HIEFEERER - TVRBERE which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March
BRI AEEFT A ER] o 5 LR 2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial
BETIIAEERNEEGHENER - statements. These include the following which may be relevant

to the Group:

EUT B

H 2 BBREY

S HIEEN
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

(BEMBHREEADNFESE (T —F2_T—NFFERH) —E—RF—-H—H

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle 1 January 2016

(ERPBIMEERDE105 M EB G ERDFE28FNER [ REZ HABE N Al A S0 F —Z—R"¥—H—H
Z A EL E5T A

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and 1 January 2016

its associate or joint venture

(BB EANE 1S BEE | —Z—R¥—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
(ERGERDE65% RFEIRMIER] AT LT EME 7 £085 | —ZT—R"E—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and 1 January 2016
amortisation
(ERPBMERRDESRERE EFEAEIMA | S 2 =
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017
(BAERBRELRDEIR2HTA —T-)\F—HA—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
(EREFBImEERDE 165 HE | “Z-hAE—HA—H
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

30 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements except for the
amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases.

HKFRS 16 will be adopted in the Group'’s financial statements
for the year ending 31 March 2020. The Group will be
required to recognise all non-current leases in the form of
assets for the right of use and financial liabilities for the
payment obligation in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Annual rental and amortisation expenses of prepaid
operating lease will decrease while depreciation of right of
use of assets and interest expense arising from the financial
liabilities will increase in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The accounting treatment would differ from the
recognition of rental expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and separately disclose the related operating
lease commitments under current accounting policy.
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ML,
RURBE

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

B8/
EMERFE

Particulars of issued/

FRFFERSD

BAt

Percentage of shares

FREHR

Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company Principal activity
HiE %
Direct Indirect
BHERERAF EE 24 - 100% NERE
Benley Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ARECRINERERAA EE 10,0008 %17 - 100% REER
Fairwood (Shenzhen) Development Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment holding
Fainwood B.V.I. Limited* RBRBERES/ 579, 4370 &R 100% - REER
B EfE0.01ET
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin Islands/ 579,437 shares of Investment holding
Hong Kong US$0.01 each
Fairwood Consolidated RERAREE/ REEIETRG 100% - BREER
Investments Limited* EE
Fairwood Consolidated The British Virgin Islands/ 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
Investments Limited* Hong Kong
ARERE(ER)BRAA EE 28R4 - 100% HEREIER
Fairwood Fast Food (Management) Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Restaurant licences
holding
AREREBRAF BE 100K BRR579,437/k - 100% BEEHRERE
ERFBELRN
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and Operation of a chain of
579,437 non-voting fast food restaurants
deferred shares
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* EESRRES/ 1REEIET - 100% RABR
EE
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin Islands/ 1 share of US$1 Trademark holding
Hong Kong
PEERERAR EE 2Rk fxdn - 100% ESP
Great Choice Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
VEERARAR EE 2054 - 100% NERE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ALERERAA EE 2Rk fxdn - 100% ESP
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
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DAEH

ML
Place of incorporation/
establishment and

BRT/
EMERFE

Particulars of issued/

FATFERS
BAt

Percentage of shares

FREHR

Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company Principal activity
HiE %
Direct Indirect

KEERERAA EE 2/ 1R - 100% NERE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ERBERARAR EE 2R - 100% NERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
EHERERAR EE 2/ 1R - 100% NERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RYRBEREBRAR* R 7,700,000% 7 - 100% Be@ERERE
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Limited* Mainland China US$7,700,000 Operation of a chain of

fast food restaurants
EREREBRAR EE 2f%fxtn - 100% NERE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
AHBERBRAR EE 2R A - 100% NERE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REERBRAF EE 2xAxtn - 100% NERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REERBRAR EE 2R - 100% NERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
B RARAR EE 2%Axtn - 100% NERAE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ERERARAR EE 28R4 - 100% NERE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment

* ALERARYIFREFH S EEMEX *

(@ RZE—RF=A=+—H " kHES

R Y i A gl N =N B2
EORAMEHBREBENRRAREE
EREY6% (—E—RF : 8%)K%4%

—T-hF:6%)-°

(b) BB ARMEERDETEERA -

RIREEBER D E

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Companies not audited by KPMG

(@) At 31 March 2016, the financial statements of the subsidiaries
not audited by KPMG reflect total revenue and total net assets
constituting approximately 6% (2015: 8%) and 4% (2015:
6%) respectively of the related consolidated totals.

(b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.



ZE-RE —T—hHF —T-WNFE —T=F T4
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
F Tt T T Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
E N Results:
A Revenue 2,427,973 2,244,885 2,037,719 1,929,244 1,829,456
4RSS Profit from operations 243,072 180,171 137,055 165,950 151,510
BB Finance costs (171) (70) (785) (865) (1,756)
R T BT ) Profit before taxation 242,901 180,101 136,270 165,085 149,754
FT5%% Income tax (42,123) (36,134) (28,659) (25,616) (19,374)
ZiN/NGIV- i Profit attributable to equity
FERRF shareholders of the Company 200,778 143,967 107,611 139,469 130,380
EEREE: Assets and liabilities:
1B YE - Efb¥  Investment properties, other
2 HEIFNRMER. property, plant and equipment
EE L and leasehold land 424,241 383,011 403,968 433,471 401,982
S Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
BfHeES Rental deposits paid 51,670 51,470 51,048 46,892 44,721
Hih &g EE Other financial assets 8,405 8,835 8,826 - 2,329
BEBIBAEE Deferred tax assets 306 427 1,957 2,045 780
TRENEE Current assets 656,224 537,356 421,149 378,594 355,950
EEHEE Total assets 1,141,847 982,100 887,949 862,003 806,763
REBE Current liabilities (396,335) (319,847) (293,768) (273,518) (244,408)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (69,174) (62,089) (58,919) (68,786) (61,516)
BEEZE Net assets 676,338 600,164 535,262 519,699 500,839
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i B

Location

AR

Existing use

HEH

Term of lease

il

YT

i

5 B
BN ER 2
2510352104058 7 4
Shop Unit Nos. 1035-1040 on Level 2
Lowu Commercial Plaza
Guangchang South Road
Luohu District

Shenzhen

PRC

[ER]
Shops

hE]

Medium-term

RREEEERAE
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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